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03. Plpeursd HL_LLOLIL



Board of Management

|
D.D/AD.

(Administration
and Supplies)

Administration (01)

Secretary Manager A.M./A.O.(i)
Legal Officer Procurement
Transport
Management Management Management

Assistant (02) Assistant (03) [[|

D.D.
A.D.

AM.

A.O.
TM.
T.O.

S.IT.

D.M.

1.S.

(01 Supply Asst.)

Driver (07)

Office Aid/ Labourer

(04)
(Dispatch Rider 02)

Deputy Director
Assistant Director
Administration Manager
Administrative Officer
Training Manager
Training Officer

Special Industrial Training
District Manager
Information System

11

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director General
y
Director Director Director : Director
- . ; A Planning & Development v
(Administration & Human Resource) (Finance) (Quality) 9 P (Training)
[ I
[ l [ | | ' ! I |
D.D./AD. D.D./AD. D.D./A.D. D.D./AD.
D.D./A.D. D.D./A.D. D.D./AD. D.D./A.D. D.D/AD. Pyl . . - . | |
(Human Resource (Human Resource (Infrastructure Develop- (Budget/Accts.&Sat (Other payments) Certification) Assessment (Quality) (National Skills Standards Unit) _
Management) Development) ment & Maintanance) Weg) [ D.D/AD. 03 National Institute D.D/AD. D.D/AD. D.D/AD. D.D/AD. 'DDJ/AD.. D.D/AD. (Training & ,
T ) - Quality Management | (Imformation System) Principales Learning System Planning & (Internal Auditor) Industrial Relations Training Services Clusters) [
| | | | Quality D%velopment & Implement1t|on I | ,——l Chief Information Center Dev. Information | Clus(t,slra!tr;i;tute Cluster Office
[ AM/AOG) | [TAM/AOIi) T0.01) TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO . . | .
0. T™M/TO TM/TO TM/TO . , TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO Technical Functional DM (Galle/Matara/| | _Basic
| Accounts Officer | Accounts Officer NTT_%‘ NVQ Cegmceartes (EBT Evalu.) NTT CBT Assesment RPL Assesment QualltyI Standard | IQuallty ) Quality Aud.iting Officer Data Continuring Course acreditation TM/TO TM/TO | | [ [ ] | | Ha(mbanthota/  Training Accounts
Technical Certificates Development mplementation & Monitoring Management | | Improvement | | (Product, resource, TM/TO Statistician Internal Audit Internal Audit | | TM/TO || TM/TO TM/TO SIT | | 1v/T0 (1R) T™M/TO TM/TO @/E Monaragala) Centre Officer
Instructor (03) Officer (01) | (Innovating / method, quality) System Database Business Lang/ELe. 1) Officer Officer (ATI/AE) (IET) Assessment) 1((Merk./C.G/Enp (English) [
Reserch) Administrator Administrator Processing T0 (07 —
W Translator (02) Management Maintanance Management Dralftman Co/Inspector| | Co/Inspector| | Co/Inspector Co/Inspector Analyst | > Co_%ﬁt\eﬂtmg c0-01 Ir(\glpﬁcggr
Aar)atge;n(??} Assistant (02) Officer (01) Asei 9 o o1) Book Keeper (01) | Book Keeper (01) 01) o1 (01) Skills Standard | | | Skills Standard Inspector Inspector Instructor 04
@ 55|st§m . P Management ssisstant (01) Development Development (04) Inspector Career Guidence (24)
eceptionis Assistant Assistant (02) Assistant (02) (06) Officer (02)
(05) (CO1, Inspector (02)
VCO01,D.G.01) | |
Skill Craftman (04) Management Assistant (06) . ) Management Management
(Accounts Asst. 01) Man&geme:;t A;sﬁtaar% (06) Manag(;setmsnt :\smhstar)nt oD Assistant (03) Assistgnt (03) Mapagement lear'\agemg;t Mz;\r;i;igsg?]?nt Management Assistant 07 Management Management|iManagement||Management| [Management| |Management Management
(Store Keeper 02) ccounts Asst. enographel Assistant (03) ssistant (02) IS Set ii (02) Management (Internal Audit Assistant - 04) Assistant (06) Assistant (02)||Assistant (01) ||Assistant (02)| [Assistant (02)| [Assistant (11) Assistant (01)
Tech. lllustrator(1) AS?(I)S;;’:Int
Audio Visual Tech.
. (02)
; Office Aid/ Labourer ;
Office Aid/ Labourer o1 Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/
(04) oy Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) l
(Dispatch Rider 02) Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Driver/Office
] Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Aid (04) Labourer- Office Aid/
B;:EEE: General 831 5/6?2: sﬁlipal 03 (LZSS9? Bi;‘k Office Aid/ Labourer | Office Aid/ Labourer (01) | Office Aid/ Labourer (01) | |Ofﬁce Aid/ Labourer (O1)| 04 Labourer (01)
ssistan
D.D./A.D. (IA/Accounts) 17 Deputy Principal 06
T.M./T.O. 62 Lecturer 49
AM./A.O. 05 Accounts Officer 03
Secretary Legal Officer 01 Book Keeper 02
Manager Procurement 01 A.M./Registrar/A.O. 03
D.M. 25 Computer System Analyst 03
Accounts Officer 03 Instructor 93
System Administrator 01 VRU Service Manager 01
Database Administrator 01 Quality Assurance Officer 04
Apprenticeship Dev. 20 Lab Assistant 12
Technical Officer 01 Linbrarian/Asst.Libratian 03
Internal Audit Officer 01 Worden 02
Statistician 01 Management Assistant 42
Transport Officer 01 Technical Illustrator 02
Book Keeper 02 Graphic Designer 02
Draftman 01 Litho Machine Operator 04
Co/Inspectors 192 Book Binder 04
Translator 02 Printing Office Machine Op. 02
Management Assistant 207 Skill Craftsman 17
Audio Visual Technician 03 Driver 05
Technical lllustrator 01 Office Aid/Labourer 12
Instructor 73 274
Skilled Craftman 04
Driver/Office aidse 32 Total 992
Office Aid 56

718

Management
Assistant (01)

Office Aid/
Labourer (01)
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04. aFsryFmuuiear CrrsoamiseT
sTilysF FlLsdHar 37(1) o0 Gevdall upHuler FsTrn QbHeH AHBTTFHLUNGT
Grraamisat LSTeUHTm STEILLHLD.

(@) ampesmas0sTe uulndfasmensd FH LGS0, TalhmeHs CFUIHe0
wOOILD LUIHFBENET  AULPEIGFH60.

(@) arpeEmasosTed LuWlnds@G i Bumsmen Bifeuuldhss0.

@) ampasmas0sTed uuindfes@flu uflmasamen BLISHHIHD, FTGINBHLDHM6NT
QULDTRIGHSHED LOMMILD 6JENEITUI LOTEILIBIGEN6T  GULDHRIEHSH60.

® GCaxfw OamPeOmI L OB LFLeNFHMENT [BLTHHIH6V.

() aumpesmassTsd uuind upPu prruiFs womd SelmesHF GFwpur
Baemen GomOsTeTerns.

(2a1) uwev FHpeaisenen CDUBHHIHD LLHMID CbUbBSHSHUSDETE  CUTLIQHEmENT
BLTSHSHIH60.

(61 uTpEmaBHOHTN LUInFeemen eUPEIGSHSTD BHneUaTHRIGMMIHID cJeneoTul
misusBIGeTeEHID LWIDdsS FHpaisamenr lalhHeHH CFUIHe.

@) aurpesmas0sTHsd LuInd QHTLILIN auThoHmasosTled  Lulndolememnids
GBS pCOTFNIHEMEN  CULDMHEIEHFH6V.

(@ Bmanwrer CrrésmisamenumLuwl @evmiensulsvd GeuslibTGaellan iemwb
Floen  BlmieueidEpLe  OFHTLIYMLW  FTaimspsenet  1glGemmom  ommiLp
ulL el ol Hrmsaied &HHH MHOBTETEHL umBUTD 2 flul BL UG
HMBBHMEN 61(HHH6V LOMMILD HenL (LPeNMLILIHESH60.

05. giFsmysemuuier Hysren QFwOUBST. . BBWFAS 'L EiSHei

(9) STFTEIG HNICUMTRIGEHLEILD SHEIWTT BNIEUSTRISEHLMID RMewIbhH MHH0-
STPL iglinenLuieomer LUlsBT LUIDSFEmen auPEIGH wHMID 03 CxFw mmieu-
emIBeT 8% GBIWL BTH (WpeudHevid Siewwbg ieTen LulsbT LulDd Blensouimis-
ofledt epeulomsd @rewiLmid mHlemevll LUIMFBEMENT  EULPEIGHSH60

(@) gme ampsmas QT uwlipdewl QumidlameuFsenem Lev  mBlmieue-
RBEHHG AT alemensHmer euruipbs LWINFOWTaTenOL CUDMIEEHT(HHSH0
(®) Guryl(heweu, GuITEHaiw WHMID [Han aml SpHU LODHM6VHD

warisafar QuTPluiwed ulLsTfl wreeufaEndEGw Chemeuwimet ebA L Ou-
Tplulwed puipFBenen 6uLPEIEGEH60

") Hoaisenent QUDD (WODFTITH MBHOBHTIHE0 AONIBIHEDHHBE (Weil AL B
AL S Capdw aumpsmdsd QBTN HMBEMIDF FTSIMSLOBHEN6NT  CULDEIEHH60
womid 2 _flweurm aumpdsnss OFTed uuwipd FTihs FTERINBLOBENET  CULDMEIEH60
SI8xBmyw o flweurtm  Bxfw eumpsmas Osmed uuilnmd FTimhs uflemaFsenen
BLTSHSIH60

(2) aumpsmasesThled uuind Boeusmsaisr vuWippeIiuTaTIsERHGL  LUIDHS-
SHEN6I  6ULPIRI(G) FH6D

(M) UTLFTEM6D LOTETEUTH6T, UTLFTeNeOUIeNBbaEI elevdlF OFein LoTewTeuTaH6i
LOILD RVHGHH GH(OHHET DpFW BHILLBEHHBTET UTLHHMBHOHTLO60 6uLfl ST L 60
FTihsd HBWEFHH FHLBIGM6EN HLTHHIH0
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06. LWiIpA WenpuilwedsEnd LHPID gmew LHFsTer PEPFAsH HILEISEHLD
6.1 uuipdA enmuiuiedasei
uuWipd (wempulweose LFHTeILOTES,

mBHOHTP0  SgliuenLuieomesr wulepy uulnd, dmeuenehamy uulmd.. Bleneou
e GrewiLmd Blemeoll uwipdl, epdrarensols LuInd, elenensHmer suTuibs LUInHS
61601 EUEMBLIL(HEHSHEVMLD.

¥ aiozmisd ongtuenLuieomer uuipy vulhd
@5 FoneuasFHemed  BLISSULUGHSID uulnd BLOYEMBBEHDHE —LHHuUleD
dysrerorer uulpd (wpempwrs elenmiGEaingl. UUIIBTS6T LUWIDSE SHTevSHHemI6rn
BGoumev OQFUIH OaTewi(h SHuUBIpeITS BHemeuwimen Henaisemenl  QuDMIS
Oamemend BOGHD DUTH6T MHEBHOBHTIHED @en6ntdsLILH SN .

BriEe ulbp®msSGL Laumn  (Wweopseied amisr S uulipdeowll  Qupmis
QameTem (LplQuiLd.
1. MBHEOBHTIH0 6ueLeBIOL L Lulhd
11. Blemeows L uuimd
1i1. Aymo Ll uuind
1v. Gaxdw LWilem) FreaMsy LUInHS
i. ma50sMfled auedauBy Ll LuinA
@610t SHmPsSGHD al8agLsaeun aumuihs Cxdw uuwind wHMID MHEBHEBHTLHE

aBeuongemend @GHuwealamed (Cmeyues) swrflédsiu’c vuind BluiwsisensCamu
mBHOBTP0 6UEOVIBHT FTIHS LUWIBT LUIDS BLTSHSUIUBE @M.

ii. Pleneowr wiLu wWigIEy uuipA
Suuuipdl  wepuler S vk @aGsurm UyCsasdavid FHpliys CxysFd

Oupp »a50sTHN0 Luipdemwll CupsNEG S@LUIUGeuSILaT  Lulbdd @ lw
Bwmisemen GNHs Bmieuetd MmID HETTFmU QEINeNeNIHH HUITFHEGHLD.



iii. dymiw wiL vy uuipdA wenp

ArmsHed HemLbdd dnlgwl LUINS auFdHlament uwWaTLbBGS SHIT WL LSHHeleTen
vWiVIBFaERSEGU ULIDSEemen aUPEIGMMS BRVSETHE CaTew(h SJmo WL
uwlsuipy  wulmd OpEp  SPWsLUGHSUUL BTN, BBHNG Seudwiorer  UUIHE
BIWLOBIGET — SI6UUTHTRT  HmeUaISHILET  HVBSTCTHASH  AFSBTT  FenLWTED
SWmfléaluBL.

&e061sH SHITHID (GMMbHS WLLGHHD sSTewiiuGL LWIBISERSGW =2 wiflul
Bxdw wLLF gramspraimml Qupmis C&meTEpD FHHILIUSMS gOUBSHHS
QarhuUusNETE BhHH0 LUUIDS (Wen AMWPSULGSSIUL (HETENG.

AuwupempulsT S CaxisHzies OameTemiuBL UULIWIBTHEDHDHE @HEUTTHTED D ETHENLOLI
uiInd pPlewsdfs HLsHear Ueieny @pewi(h LTHBT60 Slgliuenl Ll LuInHFHOwmetm)
QULPRISLILI(HLD.

SigliuenL 1l uulnd (peyndmHet ety 12 WTHETL BTV MBHOHTIHE U06IBT
vipdears eujseT @QememissliL(hdamery. bsL Lund BHewme GQFulub
UWIVIBTHET (ewpWen @ UfLengb@Gsd Camommw Jdeieny oibsl  uflengulsd
AerFHwenLuld oTewieufHEnsEG BbH dAHsTrFemuwlemed eupmsliubBL  CxhFw
vlsnpy  FTamsmwpud 6% GmIw WLLD memen ey CaxFw euTpoHm®H
QFHTHD HMBMIDF FTRINHEMPULD UDERIGHUSDG BHLOUYHMD 61(HHBLILIHLD.



mBHHTP0 SigliuenLuleorer enadh0sTeomeny uulevbisEnd@GHn ChFuw uulsibiy

FTas  QUOPATHEDEGHD GNEHS HHHN dPeurendl Slgluent Lt Lulpdulest
(peVIPLD QB TEN6VBHBEVMIUTGET CLPEV(PLD CUPEIGISME BLOUYHMSB 61(hHBLILHLD.

Geavid, LUTVIBMHBE GCouswigwl DQLILMLS HHHEN LOMID HEOL (POD DiNeleneot
@MNH5 sTeLGeULmeLUIEINT GHNHS WHHW BlemeOWIDd 6V  GULPEIGLILIHEISIL 65T
SUTHEDHHG GaId I WEBISMmeT &W SHMVIGHTE auFdH CFuis OsTHUUSDHHTS
SUT6D (pevld F&HL  LgdHes smemnd  Gpo.. Gomgured iHsTy  Fenuulermed
aupmIslUbBAamgl. uTmN  (pYelGe eauwmslBL Mlams0sTHEHNEG LUIIBTS6T
alemLwefss @i Oeiery HmssUul (b Weui(hld DeUTHEHHES SUTED  (LPEVLD
SiemILuiu(LD.

SIFFLIULL spensOpdenwll  Uesupmiensuled  uulswbiseT  (PpamIGsT(HEHLIWD
dyFfenenisen  wOMID  euFHuieBIBmens — SIUUSDETS  BTOVHHEDGHS  HT6VLD

aiFeTyFmuuiened euty @miH BT &H6fed UGBS @UEIGUBSSLILBLD.

NG Goevdawrs OCaThasE Gousmiguw opmide  sifelensr  GwubhsHHs
O&maTeusnaETs pmiIbeol uTLOBPIWL BheHU LWIIBTSHEHSE 6UPEIGLILHLD.
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@uupempullsr S uuwlwpTseT Crrywrns Gxfw uuwind HneushHnEG D060
WrCss uwimd pPoeuesdnEg GNsHs sTelILGHHEG Bmeusslul (bF GCFdhsis
QaTeTemiILBaIFHIL ST ASSTISTOTT ST V6VH DTF BmieueTOoTaImISE L6l
EarLgurer uWipfsats Siiuliubeul. LWINg BoeUeTD Sievevgl LUIHF mHlensowid
(peld GHNHS SHHFHleU WLOMID HEOL (LD MY 6UPEIGLILIHLD.  LOETTUI6UT6ITIQ G561
aiFeryFmuuier S Cxfw Pmeusmsst pamsg Cuedaswons BT g LsGam)
HypCGxpamimaiieo 111  wHIHWFBPMeOWRIET BLISGSUUL(H  eubHleTener.  Seummien
BOLOUMID UTOBMIENET BHTEV6TELMeVEAT 06 WTHEISET OBHTLEHBD 04 6UHLBIHENT
aueny Geumiu(BLo.

TR

e

il
]
%

=

P -

1990 oyib opeigest 20 oD R6VHS  CPSIMTLD [Hlewev MWD UTHEHMBS CFHTL60
&e060lF FULGHe 38 (F) eurgassHHaug, GQorrlGeme, GuITOSHaiw HMID miEam
L6LBMEVSBIDEBIGNTIeTON UL LSTeeme  eihHyalwed ulLSHNSTH LoMHMILD
LI6OBMEVHBINHID DMMILD EJENETUI  CLPSTMTLD Blenevd H6vaT HMIGUETLD (LPEVLD [HLIT-
sUu®BLd lBsmmort uTLQpHéaTas QupbdraTeeoll LInDs HHSTTFEHUUTST LpVLD

QULPRISLILI(HLD.

11



uWInfoiHsTy Femu
LWL Mbemas - 2013

o . o
[ )

gmerl  euTpeEmes Tl  Bmeuamiseisd Boeuer vwipfenwls  YisHsH
QFLIBMT(HhE®HTH DYMIOTSH STV 1
QFweipenmll  uuind oMy

Fenuulemed QULPRISLILI(HLD.
alBFLLoTH QmTHlevmILLILI
LIS 606V SHHLPHLD, @6VEINB I

Oamdm wuwind oFeTy  Feou,
Bxdw  @emenep] — CFemeusel
LDEBTIMLD LOMMILD 6J60)60TLL
SIRISHFHSIULL. DITF .. Helwimy
SO BHMIGUETEIGHATED EUTIDHMBS
Qzmidlev Hlemmulev uuim&
OQuppauTaEnHEG OCHTIHEOHIL LG
slempuiled  WpBwrmsll  uuipd
AIPRIGISDE CoHemeuwimest eug-
Hemws Qauig Garhuusmars @bs uuind opFwllsslul (BeTeng).

mBHeHTPeomenT UuleBISeT oM  CHFw  uulewmy FTSIMSD  (pemmulest
4 vWiipfenwil uisd Qsuis uwlbiseEnsEETar @IS UTHEHMBHOHTL60
wHudLTerg dysmer  siweuevs  wHII_GU  Uflelemed  GumGsmememiubLb.
eteusuTmruieniioL. LIFCHF SiVIeUeVEEIGM6NT DLTIDIHHOL ST RbSH L 6UIQEHNBHENUILI
LUTeUeOTH @GSN e1HUTTESILGISHILST SDCUTEH  cwetpTougl LFCsasdlen &
Qamewiheugliul(heten  @Q&mpoy, SWUaMT MWD @ATHHIYF  TeUL L EiSere0
wiBL bsl CsF esEIL &Hafed @QmiFH uTEmBHOBHTION WA
BGomGsmeTemiLBHSSTMG.

Guaid, Cxfw euTpsmss BTN Hmaemo wHIIG (Cgep) wHmid CxHw
ampEmaH0HTH0 LAIIG (Coyey) OaTLFumer WHNIGL LFSTET  DiI6UEVSHLD
epevld GomOsTeTeariLBS SIS

mleneowl L L ommid Srmdlw wi L uulevbmasTer @mid eurpsmead CHmidled wHiwh
GNHS LTIl L ieIeusvsld cpsonsd BumsmeateniupGL. BsAw mmeussdHnaTer
Bmid auTpEmBHOHTIN LHIIH GNHH DbHS HMIEUSID cpeooTsd HenL GUMILD.

Gxfw  PoeussHear  FHev  FTIMNISLOBEHL  UeILUTTT. . AHUT  DeV6VG)
1 HIOTMETEhH(HL 6T HeevaUflerT eNBOUITLILGHSHIL 68T HIMIGUBLD LPEVLD GULPMEIGLILIBLD.
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6.2 gemew LHYSHTe [HL6VIYHNBEHEIT

Bhg MHawFAuler cpeold aTHHMBHOST AT Yenet GumHOsTaw(h GHNHH
Hoenleiien  mBHOBTIHOTENTHEHDHEG BlUewISHed FTONSHIPL  eUPEISLILBE QTSI
wpenparyrs  uwlipdevws  Qupmis  sHBursl GFemeusmws  BHOETETEHLD
SRISHFHBIULL UTHSHMBHOHTI0 FTaHOpTaIemml GuMeUSHaT cpeud GLoaid
Fobs 2 6mpTL(h womid CeuelibTl (b Ceuemeveuruiliyssemnenl Qumms CBTETaUSNHTH
Aupemmn SiFsD LWSTLGSSLILBHSSTDSI.

sHBurgsl BHmLOUMID UTHEHMBHOSTI WHUH M|y S WLLW, My b
WL LD oMmmIb &0 D WL LLD 6160 DIeDT HILewIHHIe, Blewisgied, alGFL MlLjewuishgieud
61601 3 DU L MBIB6IT SmeiliL(halSImg.

Bxdw aMPEmBHOHTIH CHTHOH6T 10 2 UL 53 aUTPEMmBHOHTIHE0HEHLD
ool Umeuswent QHTLIUTET Blyewidhgiey FTIMHOL  (Revmiensd OCFeIHSHIH60
SIOFHL LUSHHTF FTIMBHD) UPEISILBHE SIS

BxAw aumEmasH0HTIHe0 AT Yener CumbaTsaianed sNEUTH CHFw mMlyewissie
BIWILOEIGEET STERILUULTEH UTLHHMBHOBHTI0BEHHE WL (LD eUenFWMIGBSLILL (HeTeng.
Bxdw aumpsEmasHesTIHe0 WAIIG HHCurs CxFw aTHHmBHOHTIIN FTAIMSHLD
wempulsr (Cgep) S (a1 amens et wHIILTS (fl)  wrHoUUL (HeTeng).

SIHBTTFMU  (P6VD  UTHHMBHOFHTIP0  FHlewpuLeT OsTLFymLW  (penmuiled
BlenmCaupmiiLB ysmer uelGwrapT@w. CsAw Byamdhgien FTAMISLD SHUITflo@ELD
FlLfHwmer LD cpeoonsBel HETTFMUSEG 6UPRIBLLL (HETENG.

APSIMTLD [HleN60 LMMID UTDHMBHOBHTIOE0 B0 D 606U0TEHE)(LDOSITED DIEHL UITEITEI
sreuilul L OaTevser OGaTLjurer Gaflw Myewidhgieu BUILLEIGmeTS HUITFHH60
OMID FLLANIITEHGHH0 RSB BomOsmereniiubESImg.

Gxfw OGamfeomru uvuipdl o Beorgemand@Gry cweod swmfldsiulL  Gafw
Blyewibgiey BWEIET @eubeum euTpsmsHoHTIHMIL T GTLjysmLw almsHdHd
Gwelamed SlalmeHd CFuimen HMID WeaTHHESHISN BmE&G CmbsmeTeriu(pLd.
Bxfw Gamfleomul wuipd oL Ceorsmens G @auGTH HMMEBGHD LHMILD
auTpEmEsH OFTPNIGGHWD Fniysh CxHTFfeurtuihs HUTHeTe
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ALFHMBH OBTamwiL (GHpeuTeu L a1 SHOUTH HUMTSH (&H(WHH6T 28 oL Ig6d
DML WIT6NEI STeniliul(heTengl. @bd QT GHweays@w o miinfearjser 16 Guiy
DL I960 2 _GITENLBIGH6I].

BhdH HBWHFSH 1992 oLb JpevTged eUAILFELTHAHNT 2 HalU|L 6T eroaled STyl
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2012 2013
SBadL (paTEnLOWITENT 5 3 2
BHSHST OLL  (LPSHTEnLOWTeN’ 17 11 11
&6l LHMID LUIeY 58 28 28
HENOGL  (LPSHTEDLOWITENIT 112 71 68
g;";;a@fuj"zbmuu@éé@lm SIPIUEDT  CUIDEIBED | 4o 220 232
OBHTLILDLUI  SIEVIEUET 6T 2 1 0
paremw 2 _gsealwmsny Caemeu 276 238 252
LU L LE CFeneudser 136 112 116
Gorgzbd 992 684 709

2013 o0 opewiged 77 eaflwisenend GFIHHIE OBTERILFHIL6T 2emPluiTser 7
GumdE uselwwie] eupmIBILL (HeTeng.(SiLLeuenemnt 18

Sl Leuenewr 18 : Blunosmpd uujwjepd -2013

alluyLd 6TGUT6U0T b 69) &
Blwiwed (BIFHBHT HUILDETLD) 77
LISIUJWIT 61 61T 7

Wenmuieumemngenien 409 oamflwuiseEnd@ UwWDd omAwy HewsFd BLISSUULLGI.
SIFHICUTHIBN 06 isvieueviEeT GeuelBTl(BH 2emflwy STelmsHd BlaswsFseEnd G

SiemILULLL (heeney. (SiLLeuenewt 19 wmmid 20)

Sl Leuenem 19: gpenewil oniealmsd - 2 eTBT G

uuipaA 2013

. UIsI@ Ul Guum
sflupb srmr@amﬂ%%)as b
UL L ULngLiy 01
FTNHD HMHenSHEHM 14
aJllliyewreyl (B0 MHlsLpFSH60 394
QLT &HHLD 409
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SiLLeuenewr 20 : gpenenfl SlelmSF - QeuefipT Bl Luips-2013

Benips pr P
Training Programme on SACOs Global

Knowledge Sharing Event and Study | @bguwm 01
Tour

Sri Lanka  Australia  Technical .

Programme Sieyero @y edluim 01
Capacity Development Programme Qamiflum 02
Technical and Vocational Education

Training Programme for Principle and | &#misliy 01
Leaders

Trair?ing on Quality of Home SesiT 01
appliances

QTSSO 06

Hp&Femy BL6uIgHmBH6i

Wenmuisumerngenien SiFsrrFenuuiet tyFary Wifley uedGouy 26 smEIB6fENTLTS (LY
BTG 2 eTenLmIGWw ugwrer NyFsmy BLealgdbmaser 123 Qenar GohHOsTasi(BeiTeng.
Guoand UGBy BWIBTLA  WOHOID — HEPFIBEHHG — ABBTTFHUUIEIILI
Wy IeuIn(GSHSHI(PSOTSL  LIBIGUDDHILIETENS).

FLapd FHeucvsmen QFwdHUTHLD

@naiifleler cpeooTs HLONYEMBHET LLODID gemarwl (PIGaIDmEIHEET LM
sVBHMIWTL  Couswigul FH60 HHeULSMENMUWL AIMICFTSHH puley OCFUIH60
wppd  swnflgsed  CupOsTeTeNUUBSZILST  HBTyFenLUT6T 2 Wiyl L
(PBTMSHHINSHDEH DIMDFSNG IVVHI FMEW BMICBIEIBEHBE) (BTG5
Fyorearismen  CnOETaTudDGHS CHMeUWTET (PETMLSHHING  HB6UOHEMENT
AUPEIGHD BGmHOsBTeTemILHESTDG.

S15ICUTEIBm FHewiewils HToyd Cx:Temeu cpevld HHeusvdamenl GuUDMI 2 flui GrydHse0
SHBOUDHM6N CUPEBIGHEUSDES (WPIQULDTEIHLD OHMILD (PP BTHLD 2 6T6NLBIGLOLIQWITS
@enewiwid cpevd HHUD BGFBFlHH0 (PemEnmW STHOIILSDE (LPIQUILOTETENLD
sFsrygeauwier yHw SHmiy penerssrer @ LFGsusom@Ld.

Guad, @eucurewigenien BneuasHNDG Geuswngwl gl (Bd HLL , QFwPuTLBdH
Hlrw  gwurfliudsd wwopmd wuind  BLagSmBBMmen  Goourjenen GFUILH6E0
@eileuTenTiganIei HeL GUDMIGTENSI.
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08. gemeiwl QFwmHLIT(HE6I

BLOIRHMBHEHD HBOFFBEHD SyewIBLITED BGHOETeTenIILIL (B6Tengl.
25 OTEULLIBIEGT 2 6ieNLBIGL 6leHHed FHmsend, opmded LOHOW SOW
@eaeldFTany SsglumLuled BFjssis GsmeTeniulL U L TiEmen LFGFTHH]T
iUy ugeluied Puddas SIuTHEHsHE BWaTS HYHPW 6UPEISLILL (BTN

Q6ugnd emeuLed HT6VHHE0 DTTOIHTHID HLISHUILLL HIL ST @iy MM SpFuiraieo
(WaHET(PHeoTE STLAUUBSHSIULL (1Baieny SuflenGu) QHTIHEOHIL LSHHIL ST Fnlgul
Oeugns BxmyemsHenat Cxflw LWINBT mBHOHTND uulnd oiHsry Fepuules
Aysmen SisvieueushHer Dlsvieusd alenTeHHB0 ST FUUBSHSUILL LS.
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Gxdw ullky masHHTY uulnd ofsry  Feouuler  eaunflaTl LedeT S
QuTEVBBMIME BHHBTH LT(HSHHTUMT HHW BleneouisdHed BLTSSULBLD (LP6ST6T 6
beoyeyml  Gumymeflaseflest  LSTHSHSHTLIEN
PapFfuler S yermebsTuerd GQumm
29 vk THERHEG Cgep 111 FmasL
GULDTRI(GHLD EM6ULIGILD &L (BBTWHD
BuibdHralwisd OsTNORILL  Bimieuesddet
Gysmer  GasLBumy gaLFHed @emenehy
aleusTy omId Hmerlalhss DeDEFF]
OQx6emgeu L6verd PSLUGLIHLD SI6UTHETS
HMEVEMLOUTET S HewL GUDDMSHI. B6m6N(6hHT
aleusty wmmib HmerlelhmeHd sienodFlet
3T &mesutliL(hLd Bxdw LUNeVIBT
mBHOHTP0  LuInd  iHsTyFemLulest
B QFupupld PEOBTLUGMS, GLrTl LTy eurser Qubdrelwesd uuind Hmieu-
adhHer (muumet OLd) 21 peukhl FTIMNSLD CUPEIGLD MeULIUD  LIGRIL TIHTUISHD
©TUBTIHS FiauBxhgF WIHTL(H LTI USHHD HewL GUDDSI.

LTEIL L SIEVIEUEVSBEIHET (LPEVLD [HemL QLMD

QMLOLITHGHTL ML

1. amwurThCHTLENML  WIEULL  DI6VI6UVSLD
eeold  eimuT(h  GeuiwiulL QUTEHIES 6T
FHTHTT [HLOUYHND
o fmeg  “erullend” QUIHIF  &BSTHTFL
ufGFTHBTHMNSIT LIMIEGHLMMEVIL 63T
* U6l &BTHTILD OFHTLFUTET HlepFs- G
souel  WOMID  WTOILL DIV BHSHIL 68T
BB BLSHSHID

2. opEpmw al[HSHSH LOHMID HENELMLOSHSHIAIL
uuwind smiIsevenell FCHF Siyg Fmyumm K-
mieueTSHeTe0 gOUT®H GaFuiwiul L “beousdeusn” LOGIMHLD LOMHMILD LMIGUDDEVIL 65T HL-
THSUILLL G

3. dmeuy wpmid CUeRTEET UTSHIS mu oy
QarLFuTet BapFHOwmeaim womid FlLw alld-
(mnHeT COHTLIUTST BlahFHAOWTaenD SHHis-
Temev  QUITETled  BiVIEIVBSHHN  LIBIS6ETILILIL 63T
BLTSHSLILLL G

4. Quedloigmas CaTleomI U allddulmeouid
LOMMILD TE| QFHTLFLI60 LTSS L
SHUTHISTLIL GFwevLoFealled umIGUDDIL
anuThBHTL L Wmeul L UUleVIBTH6T LOEa LD
SLTOUSFHILET HFFO SLTHHH60 uuinmd GQumibd
alsLb.
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LgI6me6I

ueniwmenjset 104 GumsaTs HmLOUDPD HHSHHIEICHTEIN Cuimeayu] mBlmieueddle
HMEVAFITT HMLMDSHFHIUSHHT S LGlenen, Geuslls GammlLelled HenL GUDMSI

AILL DIVIIGVBLD (Lp6UlD BLTHBULLL QFHTPe0aUNSTL LD HBWEFHF Fhendh oW meim
2013 oyemi(h LLTTH6LD

urLaTenevenw el (B ealevdldF QFearGmmy

UTL&T6E06V  LDIT630T6UI] H6NT

Bsusmevwimm Semenehy Ujeugudesty

SITF LOMILD DFF FTTUDD HIEDM DIEVI6UEVITH6NT

uuileoipy FreIMise GQUOHGTY

OooOo

Gumenin ueLGoum RQEVBGHD GHWHHEmen CHTHETHS OCBTEWIH BHLTHBHLILIHLD.

LOTHSHEMM LOTOULL  SI6VI6U60SHLD 42 S)6uGH MBMMIT
(peUld BLISHIULL Qeustd usbd) EHTUBTTSHSHMBDH QBTesuILm(HLD
BEID6| DIbD CUETTHSHHI6N (PBIDTSH IOTHBHEMM F6Uld SUIGFlul
BOLQUDHM ailgLD alenemum_LJmIFsd HenL Gumm

alememur_ (b efpm
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HIUEOTESWT  OTaUlL  DIVI6UEVEH S GTT60
gour(® QEuiululL SLenL 6UIQ6UMLOLIL|S
semisT 8 anlLer GssF uulemy vul-
md mlemeows omemTieuT (& pGeuTesTaenTTe0
GumOsmeremiul L Gumrgy)

LTAILL SINIEUEVELD (LPEVD BLISSUULL BHWEFHH6T Fov

U Guremall QuTmeT HBLUY BHWFS- LLINIBHBHTS
U allenenwim (B edpm

CaraTemey OTAOILL DIQIEUEVHLD (LPEVLD . .
gour@® QFuwiulL yssrem®B elpr- 42%9"@.@-&’&)@[‘ TLSTITSS
Foujent muibd ST eidSumeouw Blasaleneis QsTeasiLm(BD (LPHLTES
fememut’ LyEidsd Baxmmemsy TEULL By 6memiuileo (hHLd

LWIVIBTHEDHL BmeibHH HLTHHU

6160860 BuLIg&H 6T

TOUL L DIVI6U6VE  DILDG)FTH6EHEN6D
utLOmBMullenet BLISHW SLSHHemen G-
SO [BleMEVWILDTE  [Hl(THLD6WT S S 6MLD

L] MBHUIED HEWIHTL
Il Lo6wTLIOILIGHT SH6soTaTL_ &
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RMHOBTLUGHMS GLOTLLTT 6uTeH6nt
ebdHralwed  uuind  Flmeusd
epeoonsd  gourl  GQEuiwiiul L
ueLBoum  PlaEpFHHefed  Hemev-
o  Hm.DmemCheu  ieujHelest
semevenioulest S &eomamy  Hl-
SPOUTEIMILD 24 peug Hl  p6w1(H
Blemme| eneuLSHDBTE 6THUT(H
Qeuiwiu’ L mo  QUTHSHHID
S0Fmer Y TDNHFH  eud-
H60 OO BTSSIHTEN  Blsdad
QL OOUMHMS.

IET- empgliyaiwey G mplevmi U Himieusio

&L_(BBTWEBSH60 WEEN S
Bpworeiesiu’ @ 100 omewr-
OUTHOT HEIBH FnlgUl CLPESTM| LOMIQ-
smend  QamewiL  allHHOw Ty
SIS SIUL (HeT6ng).

24,616u0ll NN VIY:¥: ) P&
OaTLQpmeim 2013 o oyemi(h
ugrseo  gour@®  QEuwiul L g.

SIHMHE L ul6d HOHMT
BugevtT iy & (61H b &I 6vT Gursenent
(PpEmM OHTLFUT6sT BBHFS,

mBHOHTHE060 UTHISTULYOSTLTUT6DT
BlapFFHOWTeTmIL FPULTS SNBSS



£  srouc@shen  alluglueg, Wenmiepbmiiu Redamisslsd  Guords wieflwiwotss w685,
SiFEFamuss alfalbslul Getenms muT 61,237,045.72 sumaumurs GUBOUC Feeng.

BemnsCs flulismsd
silfeldsiuiny
Ly AL
(mum.) (L)
Wshiflsp Geevsllen wreflnbd 630,000,000.00 564,000,000.00
apsoses GFsosilen wreflubh -(p.Gsn
160,000,000.00 121,700,000.00
790,000,000.00 685,700,000.00
sl B ¢ AL B sugpoTenD 43,000,000.00 61,237,045.72
L bBbEnen Gorhs aumLaesLD 833,000,000.00 746,937,045.72

20130 aumpLsHs goau (pesafsafLdmbs Gupiule o salsat £8p  slgdssmiLiul Beiena :

sl wimssatlen /[

BAwrsafisl Giiguos]
GupiucL 2 sal (st Bea ) - olLasa- 14 (Ubsi- 44) 11,667,717.25
Cauminn’ L aumoteRo - 13 (ussin43) 85,633,350.73

97,301,067.98

d\paumih syeuetiss & sfienL dsUul Balsnan

i. 2013 SAGxbuy 3Lb HeHulsd pHosTDS.

ii. 2013 ARsibuy 3k HeHulsd Wysyhn sGLSADHTE aETR LFeala Sambs.
iii. 2013 HAxbuy 31 HeHulsd WYyapdp aBLIADSTE STH UTDE| SHE.

iv. 2013 BGsbUy 31 HsHuled abp umbLGBDET HHOTHDRGSEH S,

V. 2013 AGsmur 3lib Aefulsh (ppahp aupLbAbhera senb®Hse LBy GROyssT.
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Esfu LipEr @si0snfh vuiha mvm

31.12.2013a Pa Peosoand

ud 31.12.2013
oy s 2012
oL oo (@) {mum)
T i
Peveouwnen gypemmsi
asenb, GuIifsbsrEsd 2 usTETRSEsT 2 A 21 904,803,170.81 954,610,800.22
(peiCGaabmosnLuph (psosen Csusnen 3 21 79,801,952 98 54,283,088.57
984,605,123.79 1,008,883,988.79
(PR (LPEI S, SRS
sl miLEs 4 B 21 7,896,931.52 9,799,039.85
CumshEfusmes 5 c 22 74,087,386.71 73,230,621.39
smeuliEstt, (paGETBlUsyss, (phusetsst 6 D 25 36,045,020.64 19,657,417.25
upHedH 7 29 76,179,993.34 79,406,790.20
srdjoshfenes &5 B 29 9542 631.38 11,322,050.81
ans & sk S8 9 30 37.005,144.37 31,664,375.61
240,757 ,117.96 225,080,295.11
Quurma'n pesit
BEoL (Lpanp G maliLssi
RarnBOusmsysmfiusmea 10 k& 82,335,287.21 03,941,300.26
CHfi e (PeD SBHEESSH 158,421,830.75 131,138,994.85
Gonhs oipamss 1,143,026,954.54 1,140,032, 983.64
e fogpd S e Guarge'n b
Cafu vuigupl sossbemfh vwihd dHwd 11 a9 304,808,452.43 315,140,760.19
APEOHET  PHISSD 1,391,526.65 1,401,610.50
306,199,979.08 316,542,370.68
el (penpuwshaor  GUTmEOLdb S
usl&CarsL dsTa giuTE 12 43 152,092 ,656.76 140,170,685.57
WOTDOLELE  SUgELOm S 13 43 684,734 318.70 683,310,927.38
1,143,026,954.54 1,140,032 983 .64

LSS 6 (gl 51 asofurer  sawdflf Gsadessml sfiiusend BHs sl s s wsots assiUGHEiUEANE.

uesiimeny Hg

(pETenindhgiey Fenu Biullhmib

Fhpa oimemlpe Ssdan
HEnE0GUT
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sl u

el ¥ MO

os5asnfh vulhd o@stgseu

- ud 2013 2012
Sy
B (wuin) (mwum)
8M(HLOT LD
SgeThs wiefud - et Blaipey 564,000,000.00 586,000,000.00
o . 0. whpd ug wil. GEfuld @mha Beomub 11(b) 41 2,790,909.87 1,108,905.75
WIEOUCL GUHOTET  LOTHDD 13 43 85,633,350.73 93,329,527 .88
gememu o el - el BEipay 14 44 11,667,717.25 11,374,063.20
SJENEAILI  SUHLDTSHD 15 45 61,075,923.22 42,171,695.97
Gords aigpoTeNiD 725,167,801.07  733,984,192.80
sfiss : Qrupun B CrFevalamissit
uuipd Gesoalanrissl
Ganfhuuis GenBlumaEsh 16 47 8,761,267.30
s Esiey Gumml s 17 47 16,462,264 .26 16,421,145.82
gaany uulipd Qesoslamasen 18 47 76,490,223.59 106,862,137.48
ugpeiulel mGrson 19 48 212,763,718.70 190,438,776.26
ugpaiufisnt smbson — gevenu Crsoslienansi 191 48 21,173,496.99 18,539,801.99
Bumda oy b CEeraeshCsr b 20 49 50,011,243.76 39,547 ,663.40
SH|PRMEEUEETID  Oigisneos Gxenauls QLT ST 21 49 9,161,283.17 9,434,554,95
o _usFoE Lgmofiiey 22 50 62,277,219.26 54 224 997 .40
swenayl) LmLedii 23 50 96,390,093.20 93,503,539.56
544,729,542 .93 538,733,884.16
pmauns whHph HHF Cseoalamss
ussiulienl sumGlssom 19 48 114,565,079.30 102,543 956.45
upaiufat sumbraon — genany QFsosllamisen 19/11 48 11,401,113.77 9,982,970.30
B s s g, BiEmaneod G 20 49 26,929,131.25 21,294 895 67
supRuBEEEHD opreansos Coea Gurml Semb 21 49 4932, 998.63 5,080,144.98
o usgem Lymofiieg 22 50 33,533,887.29 29,198,075.53
susTegll Lyl 23 50 51,802,357.88 50,348,059.76
SENBEMIEY B L ST 377.488.10 484 ,598.00
Buh gmeny Gusoalamussh 24 50 5,113,780.24 5,562,588.55
248,755,836.46 224,495 289.24
Guorgs CGFupumn @ CFsalamiss 793,485,379.39 763,229,173.40
SembEsrar  Gaslw Ssoub (68,317,478.32)  (29,244,980.60)
geaw umflu) eugpIDTENmISET
Wit WAL G Bems [/ ( ubprEEeom)
Ceusiipn o _seall whmb CFrsFidbss
Gsoreuswfl WWemas [ (ubmrdsenn)
uesils Gt wHILE bes [ ( ubprsgmenn)
pumy sfleey Beoub [ (L)
Par urfll aIgLTeTTSsT
Cpflu vuigap) ospepniDh Luind PHusBHE
wIHpOUCL. Bens | Uipndens 39  68317478.32  -29.244,980.60
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Sxd vulignps essEsnih vulipd sgisryreu
3122013 & gpnaghp sehdsra ssaiumig sbp

2013 2012
{emum) {um)
Cpmfduih Qrudurbsafiebs sis unie
Cemfiufh GrudinBerinle s (mepa ) -68,317,478.32 -28,244,880.60
Py aumlusd GErLjuren A dscse 3,664,875.17  63,569,027.40
-£54,652,603.15  34,324,046.80
Beieam_gale Crflumanben L UsibEnrm -9,.382,233.50 -10,010,778.99
v S5 aumoTanb -2,790,909.87 -1,108,905.75
usd Op whgeb whdu B geeope Gedsb -3,237,767.01 -2,084,431.69
uEdl GE whieb whSu P sCLnw GEema geRe GRS -1,618,883.51 -1,042 21584
U Gpgane Gpidade (pebemeny canhlmmeh Gune hures Ardaib 1,297 412.82 -50,608.62
-80,364,584 22  20,027,105.91
ELFEGONE ST G
[ -4,234,354.43
IT sumones gEbsD -33,984,751.00
Cavincoemb 130,823,370.07 9371761201
emful sodsd Ugae spdigpgung wboeb mudssgeiate gribed 232,599.79 -89,284.79
Aebenany = amals Vgre oo pounE ohgd ks, gubsan QU DCIGUT gD 88,095.73 -437,801.05
enpdEanSte oeulelipbnie (Sapifan) G Dt ngdad -14,742.08 -2.50
U G, datar QUi Gy g 21,284 20469  18,868,367.93
Cupan's = gl 8,169,781.00 6451986664
onsatfhene o g -£3,800,000.00
Budumedura &_gei -718,866.84
ATl aeheneo saf Syfidsinn’ § -1,000,000.00
onsaifhenas & gl -4,074,000.00
goeos Pfuied  piladioy =299, 000.00
Copany omure sefsfin |/ Eapay 789617715 -42 073,464 64
ansuiminleore oeflefiin 1,802,108.34 1,566,369.84
Cuplaminguemcsnatich  sefadiin) [ Eeoney -856,775.32 4.080,6842.71
emoainysd, (pe Genflumame, pphuensaie  sefefiy |/ menney -16,387,603.39  29,778,600.90
Garftalaanpumanafd  sulaiiny | meapa -11,606,013.05 -27,164,640.34
Qupnfidult GrugurBsais Spfu ses i A -8,826,648.13 124,564 ,457.20
el § Qruguwfsofid sesiuriog
G’ L enrdalsh oumove gEadmab
Peeuna Cresgsta Caadmet -87,069,022.04 -392,253,867.37
pplagub qreope Sosorsalid (e sefadfiing -25518,864.41 -28,040,118.56
LpnSan Geripang 49,087.05 16,351.32
GpEeilf Qrupurfaefier Sxpfu  srs ey B -112,538,799.40 -420,277,634.61
PRluRssed Qruguefecid SRy srs unie
Sl ppeogan wraish 121,700,000.00  331,000,000.00
Pw GrugweBeaher Gpiiu sea Lo c 121,700,000.00 331,000,000.00
mas e s1s sopidisagnd Sniu oy (B weado 334,552.47 3528682259
by sredkge ST srs FosieisgEh 122,393.216.62 87,106,384.02
s @pduied sred ses Fwprallsgb 122,727,769.09 122,393,216.61
miSrrmauie saigucrp srfagb srs sopraisofiemgad Fplule LglUTOY
013ed g 20126 ghuce
2013 2012 e bt
erufuligah evEasupD B ST 37,005,144.37 31,664 37561 5,340,768.76 -9,431,110.25
sladguddena s 9,542 631.38 11,322,050.81 -1,779,419.43 3,858,325.75
apeiTah 76,179,893.34 79,406,790.20 -3,226,796.86 40,8559,607.10
122,727,769.09  122,393.216.62 33455247 35,286,82260

wremeysaia Wmefiysdsfiu ooaiuysare o 21, T4637639 (peelfsa o shmdgalspan,
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Efinaficonm wiinresafic safip
s g oo [°®
wlgnd: St e rree = Cughy = gl L AT 5 el P ‘Gaca el
e pastaly L] oussy L ' ]
i 01.01.2013 -520.949,757.02 44,027,168,07 T81,637.831.84 28,730.75 3,786 11000 348202923 2,084,431.50 104221584 315,140,760 45
0.00
Trgia vhma. (UML) GagoeE
Cracle som Beds
gt (g
SBITATEI2 414144079 -84, 176,037.53
0.00
0.00
N -2,700,600.86 -2.790,600.86
0.00
0.00
s e e b 42, 740,113,598 #42,740,113.06
0.00
(e Gl i g fume 3,584 BT517 3,684,87517
Ep LT E PO} 0.00
0.00
ke w ibid s
Anading 68,580 866, B4 1,000,000.00 3,237, T6T.01 16186835 T4 450,517 .35
0.00
bl Cesatis Bl eaben e
Angenfiny 54 516,867.11 200,000.00 B4, 22086711
0.00
Qo fopal -ATT,050,280.2) 4816860886 TIT 11706473 32773075 3,788,11000 3482020.28 1,000,000.00 5_%1!.?? 2,661,000.34 304,808 452 43
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Forward

The National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority (NAITA) has been established
under part II of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Act No.20 of 1990 as the
successor to the National Apprenticeship Board (NAB) incorporated under the National
Apprenticeship Act No. 49 of 1971 and has been imprinted its identity for 42 years by
extending responsibilities and services and the authority renders a great service in the
field of Vocational Training.

Combining personal skills with the work environment, the apprentices who are trained
under the theme “a knight” for the workplace, establish the identity of the National
Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority in the field of Vocational Training.

Further, by achieving our targets and objectives every year, youths are provided
opportunities to get vocational education in a systematic manner through our knowledge
and experience.

This annual report presents the performance of NAITA during the year 2013. Despite con-
straints and performing under a competitive environment, NAITA through its objectives
has been able to cater to the needs of the society. Therefore, unquestionably it is notewor-
thy that when completing the tasks, commitment of the staff, support of the public and
private sector were provided.

I take this opportunity to thank the Board of Management for its guidance, the support
extended by the staff who worked hard and for the governmental and non- governmental
organizations which provided training opportunities for trainees.

Chandana Arunadewa Silva

Chairman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
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Preface

In the terms of Section 14 of the Financial Act No. 38 of 1971, the Authority is required
to prepare the Annual Report.

This report contains three sections, information regarding the performance of training
programs, development programs related to training and other related activities, the
summary of annual accounts and the Auditor General’s Report.

The Annual Report 2013 has been prepared based on the information provided by Managers
of 25 District Offices and the Heads of National Institutes and Head of Department of each
Division in the Head Office. This report has been prepared analyzing and summarizing
the information, so provided.

Planning and Development Division
2013

iii
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History

The National Apprentice Board with the government involvement has been established
under the National Apprentice Act No. 49 0f 1971, as a remedy for the youth unrest
experienced around 41 years ago in Sri Lanka. With the support of United Nations
Development Programme and the International Labour Organization activities such as
development of lesson modules relating to Apprentice Training, constituting standards for
Training Programmes, preparing guidelines relevant to Distance Education and awarding
Skilled certificates were implemented through the National Apprentice Board.

In 1983, Apprentice Training Institute has been established with the financial assistance of
German Federal government as the first National Training Institute at No.581, Galle Road,
Katubedda. In 1985, with the collaboration of United Nations Development Programme
and International Labour Organization the second National Training Institute has been
established as Technician Training Institute at 18 Milepost, Temple Road, Katunayaka.
In 1989, with the assistance of Japanese Government, Automobile Training Institute has
been established as the third National Training Institute at No.07, Dr. Danister De Silva
Mw., Orugodawaththa, Wellampitiya.

In order to enhance the capacity of the institute, National Apprentice and Industrial
Training Authority has been established under part II of the Tertiary and Vocational
Education Act No.20 of 1990.

Afterwards, the management of the National Apprentice and Industrial Authority was
decentralized to Provincial offices and it was furthered to District Offices and Cluster
Offices gradually.

By year 2013, the management and the training process of National Apprentice and
Industrial Training Authority extended its services through six cluster offices covering 25
districts of the country

iv
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Introduction

Legal Structure

The National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority have been established under
part II of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Act No.20 of 1990 as the successor
to the National Apprenticeship Board (NAB) that incorporated under the National
Apprenticeship Act No. 49 of 1971.

By successfully accomplishing duties vested to authority, it is aged 41 years by now
and it’s worthy to brief on members who stood behind the long journey in the field of
Vocational Training from the year 1971 up to 2013.

1. Training Division
The Training Division comprised with Recruitment Division, Training Division, In-Plant
Training Division, Career Guidance Division functions in all 25 districts of the country in
executing plan training activities, inspection, co-ordination and maintaining.

2. Administration Division

Administration Division is comprised with main divisions such as the Recruitment
Division, Transport Division, Construction and Maintenance Division, Legal Division,
Staff Development Division and provides a strong foundation for the future endeavors by
efficiently consuming and managing physical and human resources.

3. Finance Division

This is consisted of Procurement Division, Stores Division, Payments Division, Salary
Division and Book Keeping Division and the annual budget is prepared by the Planning
Division according to the Action and Cooperate Plan which drives the institute forward
in a lively manner.
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4. Quality Division
This Division is made by Curriculum Development Division, Quality Management
Division, National Vocational Qualification Division, National Trade Test Division,
Assessment Division, Certificate Division provides a great strength to achieve the
objectives of the authority by providing resources required to conduct effective and
systematic training and by supplying required instruments to develop quality of apprentices
and the institute.

5. Planning and Development Division

This division paves a way for the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
to co-ordinate with the other institutes by providing information to government and
non-government institutions including the line ministry by obtaining the progress covering
all District Offices, National Institutes and all divisions such as Administration, Quality,
Finance and Training through the management system and preparing monthly progress
reports, quarterly reports, annual reports and other reports based on the requirement.

Further, it’s mainly responsible for working out various plans based on requirement and
the Corporate Plan, Action plan for proper working of the Authority

6. Audit Division

The Audit division works closely with the other institutes including the Auditor General’s
Department, the line ministry by running internal auditing activities of the National
Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority. Further, it does a great service by providing
information required for the management of the institute and by coordinating audit and
management committees for systematic maintenance of the transparency of internal
management and activities of the institute.
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VISION

To be the institution that excels in development
of youth competencies to meet
industrial requirements.

MISSION

Providing industry-based Vocational and Technical
Training for youth to develop occupational
competencies through well formulated skills

training programs to meet the well-disciplined and

dedicated manpower requirements in the industry.

Q Attracting most suitable and deserving youth.
Q Being a highty motivated well-structured professional body.
O With the involvement of dedicated cooperation of training providers and donors.

O Contributing to the achievement of the national objective of competency based economy.

vii
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2013.....

Recruitments 29,096
Targets Achieved 90%
Capital Expenditure 127.45 (Rs. Mn.)

29,096 apprentices had been recruited by reaching targets of the year 2013 and 24,214
apprentices who completed the training were socialized as skilled workers.

Certificates were offered to 21,483 apprentices under various vocations and 6078
National Vocational Qualifications (NVQ) certificates had been issued in the year 2013

and
» Reaching at the final part of programme to win over International Standard
Certificate (ISO).

»  Starting a Personality development programmes covering every apprentices so
recruited.

» Implementing an Apprentice Information System throughout the island for
collecting information.

»  Getting approved the new cadre of the Authority and recruitment procedure and
starting to make recruitments as per the approved new recruitment procedure.

»  Conducting training programmes for prisoners by joining with Ministry of
National Rehabilitation and Reforms.

» Implementing Supervision programmes by selecting an example from each
district in year 2013 for identifying quality and problems of apprentices.

»  Construction of National level Training Institute in Kilinochchi with financial
support of German Republic and GIZ of Germany and financial support of KFW
being on progress and it is planned to offer youth for training needs in the year 2016.

»  Creations for all Ceylon Skills competition called “Future Touch”, representing
fields electronic, plumbing, masonry, computer graphic designing, carpentry water

had been presented and secured the second place in it.
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01. Corporate Information
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NAITA Head Office

971,Sri Jayawardanapura Mawatha,
Welikada, Rajagiriya
T.P.011-2888782 -7

District Office- Kandy
No0.108/2B, Thiwanka Bodhi
Mawatha, Kandy
T.P.081-2201918

Institute of Engineering Technology
18" Mile Post, Temple Road,
Katunayake

T.P.011-2252833

District Office- Kegalle
No.440, Kandy Road, Meepitiya,
Kegalle T.P.035-2223127

Apprenticeship Training Institute
581,Galle Road, Katubedda,
Moratuwa

T.P.011-2647393, 011-2643847

District Office- Kilinochchi
Kandy Road, Anandapuram,
Kilinochchi T.P.034-3942824

Automobile Engineering Training
Institute

07,Dr.Denister de Silva Mawatha,
Orugodawatta

T.P. 011-2572977

District Office- Kurunegala
Negombo Road, Malkaduwawa,
Kurunegala T.P.037-2223789

District Office- Matara
No.27A, Open University Road, Nupe,
Matara T.P.041-2226958

District Office-Ampara
No.06, G.S.Lane,
Kalmunaikudi 13, Kalmunai
T.P. 067-2229357

District Office- Mannar
952/1,0ld Moor Street, Nallayar
Street, Mannar T.P.023-2223404

District Office- Anuradhapura
Airport Road, Anuradhapura
T.P.025-2223178

District Office- Matale
No.11, Temple Road, Mandandawala,
Matale T.P.066-2223173

District Office- Badulla
No.10/4,Malwatte Road, Badulla
T.P. 055-2230644

District Office- Monaragala
Kachcheri Complex, Monaragala
T.P. 055-2276504

Q00 O » » % =

District Office- Batticaloa
No.16/1, New Kalmunai Road,
Batticaloa T.P.065-2228130

District Office- Mullativu
Mankulam Road, Mulliyawalai,
Mullativu T.P. 021-2061012

District Office- Colombo
242, Havelock Road, Colombo 05
T.P.011-2587258, 011-2597671

District Office- Nuwara Eliya
No.77/3, Hospital Lane, Nuwara Eliya
T.P. 052-2223702

District Office- Galle
No.395, Wakwella Road, Julgaha,
Galle T.P.091-2235628

District Office- Polonnaruwa

A-6, Mahaweli Quarters, New Town,
Polonnaruwa

T.P. 027-3223023

District Office- Gampaha
No.61/5, Minuangoda Road,
Gampaha T.P.033-2232874

District Office- Puttlam
Molawatta, Medagama Road,
Madampe

T.P.032-2248250

District Office- Hambantota
No.34, Mihindu Mawatha, Tangalle
T.P. 047-2241512

District Office- Jaffna
Somasundaram Road, Chundikkuli,
Jaffna

T.P.021-2222383

District Office- Rathnapura

No. 642, VidyalaMawatha, New
town, Ratnuapura

T.P. 045-2228667

District Office- Kaluthara
326/2, Main Street, Kaluthara South
T.P.034-2224239

District Office- Trincomalee
No.58, Arunagiri Road, Trincomalee
T.P. 026-2226569

District Office- Vavuniya
No.49/21, 1** Lane Kovil Road,
Kurumankadu, Vavuniya

T.P. 024-2224679
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02. Board of Management

1.

Mr. Chandana Arunadewa Silva

Chairman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
No. 971, Sri Jayawardanapura Mawatha,

Welikada, Rajagiriya.

Mr. Lesli Weeramanthri

Vice Chairman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
No. 971, Sri Jayawardanapura Mawatha,

Welikada, Rajagiriya.

Mr. A. R. Deshapriya

Additional Secretary

Ministry of Youths Affairs and Skills Development
“Nipunatha Piyasa”

No. 354/2, Elvitigala Mawatha,

Colombo 05.

Mrs. C. Wijewardana
Director General

National planning Department
Ministry of Finance and planning
Colombo 01.

Dr. S.D. R. Perera

Director General

Teritory and Vocational Education Commission
No. 345/2, Elvitigala Mawatha,

Colombo 01.
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10.

Mr. Raja Hewabowala
Chairman

Silicone Coatings

No. 69, Buthgamuwa Rd,
Rajagiriya.

Mr. Buddika Iddamalgoda
Attorney-at-law

“Chandana”

Moonamal Place, Weera Mw;,
Pannipitiya.

Dr. Shantha Gamage
Senior Lecture
Department of Physics

Univesity of Sri Jayawardanapura,

Nugegoda.

Mr. S. C.Weerasekara
Group Director

Maharaja group of Companies
No. 148, Vauxhall Street,
Colombo 02.

Mr. Keerthi Gunawardana

Managing Director (Lucky Yoghurt)

No. 199, High Level Rd,
Makumbura,
Kottawa.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Mr. G. H. Sunil Gonsal
Managing Director

Nivasie Developers (Pvt.) Ltd
No. 49/16, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

Ms. Keshala Jayawardana
Chairman

Regional Development Bank
No. 933, Kandy Road,
Wedamula, Kelaniya.

Dr. Anura P. Jayasooriya

Senior Lecturer

Department of Basic Penology Section
Faculty of Penology,

University of Peradeniya,

Peradeniya.

Mr. Hiththetiyage Udaya
Company Director

No. 31, Isadeenn Town,
Matara.

Mr. M. Uvais Mohomad

Manager

Entrepreneur Resources & Financial Management Institute
No. 8/2 A, Boid Place,

Colombo 03.
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03. Organizational Structure



Board of Management

|
D.D/AD.

(Administration
and Supplies)

Administration (01)

Secretary Manager A.M./A.O.(i)
Legal Officer Procurement
Transport
Management Management Management

Assistant (02) Assistant (03) [[|

D.D.
A.D.

AM.

A.O.
TM.
T.O.

S.IT.

D.M.

1.S.

(01 Supply Asst.)

Driver (07)

Office Aid/ Labourer

(04)
(Dispatch Rider 02)

Deputy Director
Assistant Director
Administration Manager
Administrative Officer
Training Manager
Training Officer

Special Industrial Training
District Manager
Information System

11

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director General
y
Director Director Director : Director
- . ; A Planning & Development v
(Administration & Human Resource) (Finance) (Quality) 9 P (Training)
[ I
[ l [ | | ' ! I |
D.D./AD. D.D./AD. D.D./A.D. D.D./AD.
D.D./A.D. D.D./A.D. D.D./AD. D.D./A.D. D.D/AD. Pyl . . - . | |
(Human Resource (Human Resource (Infrastructure Develop- (Budget/Accts.&Sat (Other payments) Certification) Assessment (Quality) (National Skills Standards Unit) _
Management) Development) ment & Maintanance) Weg) [ D.D/AD. 03 National Institute D.D/AD. D.D/AD. D.D/AD. D.D/AD. 'DDJ/AD.. D.D/AD. (Training & ,
T ) - Quality Management | (Imformation System) Principales Learning System Planning & (Internal Auditor) Industrial Relations Training Services Clusters) [
| | | | Quality D%velopment & Implement1t|on I | ,——l Chief Information Center Dev. Information | Clus(t,slra!tr;i;tute Cluster Office
[ AM/AOG) | [TAM/AOIi) T0.01) TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO . . | .
0. T™M/TO TM/TO TM/TO . , TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO TM/TO Technical Functional DM (Galle/Matara/| | _Basic
| Accounts Officer | Accounts Officer NTT_%‘ NVQ Cegmceartes (EBT Evalu.) NTT CBT Assesment RPL Assesment QualltyI Standard | IQuallty ) Quality Aud.iting Officer Data Continuring Course acreditation TM/TO TM/TO | | [ [ ] | | Ha(mbanthota/  Training Accounts
Technical Certificates Development mplementation & Monitoring Management | | Improvement | | (Product, resource, TM/TO Statistician Internal Audit Internal Audit | | TM/TO || TM/TO TM/TO SIT | | 1v/T0 (1R) T™M/TO TM/TO @/E Monaragala) Centre Officer
Instructor (03) Officer (01) | (Innovating / method, quality) System Database Business Lang/ELe. 1) Officer Officer (ATI/AE) (IET) Assessment) 1((Merk./C.G/Enp (English) [
Reserch) Administrator Administrator Processing T0 (07 —
W Translator (02) Management Maintanance Management Dralftman Co/Inspector| | Co/Inspector| | Co/Inspector Co/Inspector Analyst | > Co_%ﬁt\eﬂtmg c0-01 Ir(\glpﬁcggr
Aar)atge;n(??} Assistant (02) Officer (01) Asei 9 o o1) Book Keeper (01) | Book Keeper (01) 01) o1 (01) Skills Standard | | | Skills Standard Inspector Inspector Instructor 04
@ 55|st§m . P Management ssisstant (01) Development Development (04) Inspector Career Guidence (24)
eceptionis Assistant Assistant (02) Assistant (02) (06) Officer (02)
(05) (CO1, Inspector (02)
VCO01,D.G.01) | |
Skill Craftman (04) Management Assistant (06) . ) Management Management
(Accounts Asst. 01) Man&geme:;t A;sﬁtaar% (06) Manag(;setmsnt :\smhstar)nt oD Assistant (03) Assistgnt (03) Mapagement lear'\agemg;t Mz;\r;i;igsg?]?nt Management Assistant 07 Management Management|iManagement||Management| [Management| |Management Management
(Store Keeper 02) ccounts Asst. enographel Assistant (03) ssistant (02) IS Set ii (02) Management (Internal Audit Assistant - 04) Assistant (06) Assistant (02)||Assistant (01) ||Assistant (02)| [Assistant (02)| [Assistant (11) Assistant (01)
Tech. lllustrator(1) AS?(I)S;;’:Int
Audio Visual Tech.
. (02)
; Office Aid/ Labourer ;
Office Aid/ Labourer o1 Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/
(04) oy Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) l
(Dispatch Rider 02) Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Office Aid/ Driver/Office
] Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Labourer (01) Aid (04) Labourer- Office Aid/
B;:EEE: General 831 5/6?2: sﬁlipal 03 (LZSS9? Bi;‘k Office Aid/ Labourer | Office Aid/ Labourer (01) | Office Aid/ Labourer (01) | |Ofﬁce Aid/ Labourer (O1)| 04 Labourer (01)
ssistan
D.D./A.D. (IA/Accounts) 17 Deputy Principal 06
T.M./T.O. 62 Lecturer 49
AM./A.O. 05 Accounts Officer 03
Secretary Legal Officer 01 Book Keeper 02
Manager Procurement 01 A.M./Registrar/A.O. 03
D.M. 25 Computer System Analyst 03
Accounts Officer 03 Instructor 93
System Administrator 01 VRU Service Manager 01
Database Administrator 01 Quality Assurance Officer 04
Apprenticeship Dev. 20 Lab Assistant 12
Technical Officer 01 Linbrarian/Asst.Libratian 03
Internal Audit Officer 01 Worden 02
Statistician 01 Management Assistant 42
Transport Officer 01 Technical Illustrator 02
Book Keeper 02 Graphic Designer 02
Draftman 01 Litho Machine Operator 04
Co/Inspectors 192 Book Binder 04
Translator 02 Printing Office Machine Op. 02
Management Assistant 207 Skill Craftsman 17
Audio Visual Technician 03 Driver 05
Technical lllustrator 01 Office Aid/Labourer 12
Instructor 73 274
Skilled Craftman 04
Driver/Office aidse 32 Total 992
Office Aid 56

718

Management
Assistant (01)

Office Aid/
Labourer (01)




Annual Report - 2013

04. Objectives of the Authority

The Objectives of the Authority in accordance with the para 37 (1) of the Act are as
follows.

Planning, organizing and providing vocational training
Specifying standards in relation to vocational training.

Conducting examination and issuing of certificates and other awards in relation to
relation to vocational training.

Conducting the National Trade Test.
Conducting the researches and development in vocational training arena.
Holding of competitions to promote the development of various skills.

Developing the training capacities of establishments and other institution by
providing vocational training.

To advise the Tertiary and vocational Education commission with regard to vocational
training aspects.

To have links institutions in Sri Lanka and abroad having similar objectives and to
equate and or validate certificates, diplomas and degrees in allied subjects and courses

05. Main Activities / Programs of NAITA

Provision of vocational training by the Industry Based Apprenticeship Training
conducted jointly with public and private sector organizations and Dual
Apprenticeship Training by 03 National Institutes and Apprenticeship Training
Centers established around the country.

Provision of On - the - job Training to trainees of other Vocational Training
Organizations.

Provision of In-plant Training to engineering undergraduates of the Universities of
Moratuwa, Peradeniya, Ruhuna and to students following various diploma courses.

Conduct of National Trade Test and Certificates of National Vocational
Qualification (N.V.Q) through assessments by Recognition of prior Learning (R.P.L)
for craftsmen who have acquired skills informally.

Training of Trainers of Vocational Training Institutes.

Conduct Career Guidance programs for school children,school leavers and other
target groups.
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06. Mode of Training and Other Main Activities
6.1. Mode of Training

Training provided by the NAITA can be broadly categorized as follows:

» Enterprise Based Apprenticeship Training
+ Institutional/Centre-based Apprenticeship Dual Training
* In-Plant Training

*  On-the-Job Training

% Enterprise-based Apprenticeship Training

This represents the major part of training out of many conducted by the institute and
the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority is the only institute which is
given the authority to do Enterprise Based Apprenticeship Training. Under this mode of
training, the trainees are attached to an enterprise throughout his / her training period to
improve skills by learning and practicing.

The trainees could obtain training under any one of the following:
i Craft Apprenticeship Training
ii. Situational Apprenticeship Training
ili.  Village Apprenticeship Training

iv.  National Apprenticeship Certificate (NAC) System

i. Craft Apprenticeship Training

Craft Apprenticeship Training can be implemented after signing an agreement between the
authority and entrepreneurs to train apprentices according to the Sector Specific Training
Standards developed by the National Industrial Training Advisory Committees (NITAC).

ii. Situational Apprenticeship Training

Apprentices are provided skills, specific to the region and to the enterprise to which they
are attached and also according to a training guide prepared by the NAITA in consultation
with trainer /employer.



iii. Village Level Apprenticeship Training
Since, the training cannot be provided according to the training standereds developed for
Craft Apprenticeship Training, Situational Apprenticeship Training has been introduced
with the aim of training apprentices at regional level using resources at hand. The training
standereds are developed by the NAITA combined with trainer / employer.

iv. National Apprenticeship Certificate (NAC)

National Apprenticeship Certificate aims at providing opportunities for trainees who are
below the required level of education, to obtain a national level certificate.

Under this scheme, the trainees enrolled, are given a two month basic training after a one
week of counseling program.

After completing the basic training, trainees are provided a Craft Apprenticeship Training
for 12 months. The NVQ level III and NAC are awarded by the authority for those who
complete the training and pass the formal test.
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The relevant theoretical knowledge is delivered through Basic Training and Distance
Education for Enterprise Based Craft Apprentices and National Apprenticeship Certificate
holders.

Further, apprentices are given Basic Training at a relevant Training Centre for a sufficient
period of time to cover basic theory and related practical skills and also are provided with
printed theory lessons / modules through postal mode to study the subject matter. Answers
for questions which are available at the end of each module are sent by the apprentices to
the NAITA and returned to them after suitable corrections are made.

NAITA also organizes week-end classes periodically to solve the problems and difficulties
connected with the printed lessons which trainees come across.

In addition, these trainees are provided with English lessons in order to enhance their
knowledge on utilization of English language.

10
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. Institutional / Centre Based Dual Apprenticeship Training

Under this scheme, trainees are directly enrolled to a National Level Training Institute or
to a District/Regional Apprenticeship Training Center for a specific period and afterwards
they are sent to a private or public institute for On-the-job Training. Practical and
theoretical knowledge are provided by the training institutes or training centers. In the
year under review, in addition to 03 National Institutes, NAITA had operated 111 training
institutes. The duration of the courses varies from six months to four years.

—

. In-Plant Training

As per the section 38 (C) of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Act No. 20 of 1990,
NAITA offers In-Plant Training for undergraduates of the Engineering Degree courses
at Moratuwa, Peradeniya and Ruhuna Universities and diploma courses conducted by
universities and other tertiary level educational institutions.

11
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. On-the-Job Training

NAITA conducts program of 06 months duration of On-the-Job Training (OJT) for students
who had completed the Institutional Training at other Vocational Training Institutes. This
program is generally activated for persons who have followed Institutional Training
in Technical colleges, Vocational Training Authority (VTA), National Youth Services
Council (NYSC) and any recognized Government / Private Vocational Training sector
organizations that need the services of NAITA, in following the On-the-Job Training.

The final Trade Test is conducted by the Head Office of the NAITA for the apprentices
those who complete the Craft Apprenticeship Training and the trainees under National
Apprenticeship Certificate. However, with the establishment of cluster offices it is
expected to dissolve responsibilities and due to that cluster offices in Colombo, Gampaha
and Ratnapura Districts which belong to the third category of cluster, only conduct the
final Trade Test.

In addition, the Head Office conducts the National Vocational Qualification (NVQ)
assessment and the National Trade Test (NTT).

The relevant District Offices conduct the final Trade Test for Situational and Village-level
Apprentices.The final Trade Test of National Institutes is conducted by the institute

concerned.

All certificates of the National Institutes are issued with the signatures of the Chairman of
the Authority and Director / Principal or Registrar.
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6.2 Other Main Activities Performed

o National Vocational Qualification (NVQ) and National Trade Test (NTT)

This program involves Trade Tests and issue “Certificate of Proficiency” to those who
possess relevant skills. Informally trained, practicing craftsmen mostly use this scheme to
obtain a recognized certificate to uplift their local and foreign employment opportunities.
At present, there are three levels of certificates namely Grade 111, Grade I and Grade |
which means semi-skilled, skilled and highly skilled levels respectively.

The NTTs are conducted in 53 trades / occupations inclusive of 10 operative (Machinery)
trades and a “certificate of competency” in relation to operation of computers (Sri Lanka
Computer Driving License -SLCDL) is issued.

The conduction of NTT is limited to trades for which National Competency Standards are
not yet available. The NTT is currently being replaced by Recognition of Prior Learning
(RPL) in the National Vocational Qualification (NVQ) system.

o Development of National Competency Standards (NCS)

NAITA is a mandated organization for developing National Competency Standards.

The authority has been mandated by the Act to develop and to validate National
Competency Standards.

Preparation and validation of relevant National Competency Standards of trades
recognized by the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission are also conducted
under this.

According to the priority trade occupations identified by Tertiary and Vocational
Education Commission, National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority develops,
revises and validates National Competency Standards through Development Committees
and National Industrial Training Advisory Committees (NITACs). The NITAC comprises
of trade/sector specific specialists. The NITAC represents approximately 16 members in
each committee.
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e Training Trainers

These programs were implemented in the year 1992 with the sponsorship of the Swiss
Contract Program under the aid of Switzerland. The main aim of this program is to improve
pedagogical skills of trainers in Public and Private Institutes. The lessons are conducted
under different phases without making hindrance to the process of their working place.

o Entrepreneurship Skill Development

These programs are focused on two categories, passed out and trainees in the system.
Entrepreneurship Development programs are aimed to provide knowledge and skills
on entrepreneurship to prepare trainees for self-employments after completion of their
training.

e Carrier Guidance

Carrier Guidance programs are conducted to increase awareness about Vocational Training
and Job Market conditions specially among school leavers and school students.

14
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o Staff Development and Personality Development

These programs focus on developing skills and competencies of the staff of NAITA. The
programs are conducted under different phases without making hindrance to the process

of their working place.

From the year 2011 onwards, every apprentice recruited to the system is also provided
with a Positive Thinking and Personality Development Training.

An occasion of Personality Developing programme for
Inspectors of the Authority
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07. Data Analysis and Presentation

In the year under review, 32613 apprentices were recruited under different classifications
to the authority. When this number is analytically compared with the year 2012, though it
shows a decline but 90% of targeted level has been crossed. (graph 01)

Graph -01 : Target and Recruitments
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During the year under review, 57% of the total recruitments registers by male apprentices
and 43% are made by female apprentices. Representing 43% by female has been
an outstanding improvement in apprentice training. (Graph 02)
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Graph 02 : Recruitment for Training — as per Gender

The graph No. 03 underlines that joining to apprentice training had been taken place
systematically throughout the year and recruitment targets too had been nearly reached.

Graph 03 : Targets of Monthly Recruitments Targets and Recruitments
(Except In-plant Training) - 2013
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It is significant that 24,214 apprentices have completed training under different
classifications at the end of year under review. Though this number has been fewer with
the number of apprentices who have completed the training in the year 2012 (27,169) it
is remarkable that 78% had completed training in compared with number of recruitments.
(Table02)
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Table 1: Summary of Training Performance (under different training classifications) - 2013

. - Number of Number on training as
Number of Recruited | Drop-outs (training)
Mode of Training | Level of Training Completed at31/12/2013

Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total

1.1)  District  Training

2278 | 3980 | 6258 | 633 622 1255 | 2403 | 3472 | 5875 | 1763 | 3052 | 4815
Centers

1)Centre based

18

on A iceshi . . 1174 | 236 | 1410 | 215 29 244 863 208 | 1071 | 2605 | 402 3007
— pprenticeship 1.2) National Institutes
m Training
I ) 644 751 | 1395 | 107 | 111 218 959 826 | 1785 | 318 382 700
= 1.3) Part-time courses
)
= 4504 | 1601 | 6105 | 1965 | 548 | 2513 | 2012 | 1200 | 3212 | 6394 | 1328 | 7722
mm 2.1) Craft level
.nIM o 2771 | 3106 | 5877 | 757 | 788 | 1545 | 2134 | 2586 | 4720 | 2331 | 1809 | 4140
= 2.2) Situational level
> 2)industry  based 2.3) Village level
< Apprenticeship . 694 828 | 1522 | 205 | 275 480 721 | 1178 | 1899 | 615 671 1286

Trainin .

5 2.4)National

. . . 147 33 180 65 51 116 | 223 84 307 105 20 125
Apprenticeship Certificate

. " 547 319 866 | 32 34 66 469 319 788 103 62 165
2.5) On the job training

3.1)Undergraduates and
Diploma students

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority

3) In-plant training 3928 | 1555 | 5483 0 3179 | 1378 | 4557 | 2372 | 613 | 2985

Total 16687 | 12409 | 29096 | 3979 | 2458 | 6437 | 12963 | 11251 | 24214 | 16606 | 8339 | 24945
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Graph 04 : Training Enrolments Under Different Classifications -2013
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During the year under review, out of the total recruitments half had been made by
Enterprise-based apprenticeship scheme is an outstanding development. It was only 49%
in the year 2012.Representing 19% of the total recruitments by In-plant training could be
considered as a considerable development compared with the year 2012 (15%). (table 01
and graph 04)

In further studying recruitments in the year 2013, 6258 (21.5%) apprentices had been
recruited from district training centres. The reason for reduction of this number compared
with the year 2012 with the intention of paying more attention on Enterprise-based
Apprenticeship training. The most number of recruitments for the Enterprise-based
Apprenticeship training in the year under review had been from In-plant training scheme.
It was 6105. (20.9% from total recruitments) (graph 05)
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Graph 05 : Training Enrolments Under Different Classifications

ft Level

Table 03 : Summary of training activities
(Centre based & Enterprise based) - 2013

Type

Recruitments

2012 2013

National
Vocational
Qualifications
(NVQ)

4199 4266

Non National
Vocational
Qualifications
(Non-NVQ)

23469 19347

Total

27668 23613

Nationa Institutes

Part Time
50

District Training

As well, the Situational and rural level
had been affected in this year compared
with last year due to reducing their
recruitment ration and improving
National =~ Vocational  recruitment
ratio. 4266 apprentices for National
Vocational Qualifications had been
recruited in the year under review and
it had shown some improvement when

compared with the year 2012.
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Graph 06 : Summery of Training Activities - 2013

By the end of year under review, 24,214 apprentices had been socialized by completing
their training. Out of that number, 5875 apprentices were from District Training Centres
and Regional Training Centres and another 4720 and 3212 apprentices had completed their
training under Situational and Craft systems respectively. Specially, 1071 apprentices had
been trained by the National Institutes too. 4557 apprentices had completed their training
in special under the In-plant training. Taken as a whole, 43% out of the total apprentices
had completed training in the year 2013. (table 02 & graph 06)

By the end of year under review, 6437 had been left from training from total of apprentices
amounting to 55,596. This number of drop outs had been drastically reduced when
compared that (8553) with the year 2012. In other words, leaving during training had
been reduced from 14% to12%. (Graph 08 & Graph 09)
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Graph 07 : Expansion in Number of Total Apprentices - 2013
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Graph 08 : Drop-Out of Training in Comparison with Total Number of Apprentices - 2013
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Graph 09 : Training Drop - Out from the Recruitments of the Year - 2013
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In a closer look at on training Drop - outs, 2299 apprentices or else 7.9% of the recruited
in the year 2013 had left the training. It is a significant drop in compared with the same
in the year 2012.

Graph 10 : Total Number of Apprentices Recruitments and Training - 2013
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In studying on drop out of training in last 10 years, there is an increase in recruitments
and trainees from year 2002 up to 2013 in comparing with number of recruitments in
each year and total number of apprentices maintained by the Authority in each year. Even
such, the number of drop outs had been taken place evenly demonstrating that the ratio of
training drop outs had been on the decrease by last years as projected by graph 10.
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At the end of year under review, 24,945 had been on the training. Out of the total number
of apprentices operated in the year 2013, 45% had been continued in to the year 2014
whilst training. Out of this amount, 31% (7722) represented by In-plant apprentices,
19% (4815) by District Training Centres and 17%by Situational apprentices. (graph 02
& table 11)

Graph 11 — Undergoing Training Under Various Classifications -2013

Craft Level
31%

nder Graduate
and Diploma District Training
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Table 04 : Summary of all Training Activities - 2013
(District Level and National Institutes)

. Number on Training
Province District Number Recruited | Number Completed as at 31/12/2012
M F Total | M F Total M F Total
O1.Enterprise-based & Dual
training
Colombo 1558 911 2469 1048 747 1795 2533 720 3253
Western Gampaha 1129 366 1495 655 282 937 1083 341 1424
Kalutara 311 319 630 308 219 527 287 239 526
Kandy 458 537 995 398 394 792 400 332 732
Central Matale 187 187 374 89 155 244 175 148 323
Nuwaraeliya 137 302 439 84 313 397 106 155 261
Galle 661 509 1170 347 325 672 678 429 1107
South Matara 596 771 1367 444 676 1120 586 620 1206
Hambantota 348 546 894 248 415 663 374 191 565
Jaffna 768 422 1190 803 544 1347 721 322 1043
Mannar 95 121 216 180 350 530 123 100 223
North Vavuniya 288 234 522 266 217 483 293 195 488
Mulativu 192 111 303 195 191 386 157 45 202
Kilinochchi 282 330 612 164 272 436 220 115 335
Batticloa 673 362 1035 414 406 820 686 302 988
East Ampara 435 606 1041 340 564 904 406 365 771
Trincomalee 547 630 1177 512 616 1128 508 346 854
North Kurunegala 442 505 947 320 494 814 349 362 711
Western Puttlam 160 263 423 137 262 399 177 167 344
Anuradhapura 434 556 990 209 325 534 344 374 718
North central
Polonnaruwa 175 89 264 184 73 257 57 43 100
Uva Badulla 400 518 918 245 436 681 387 371 758
Monaragala 228 239 467 228 245 473 244 214 458
Ratnapura 331 568 899 194 581 775 284 415 699
Sabaragamuwa
Kegalle 302 463 765 212 393 605 220 309 529
Total 11137 | 10465 | 21602 8224 9495 17719 | 11398 | 7220 | 18618
Engineering
Technological 410 147 557 267 94 361 1159 332 1491
Institute
Automobile
02 National | Engineering
Institutes Training 728 65 793 898 115 1013 990 74 1064
Institute
Apprentice
Training 484 177 661 395 169 564 687 100 787
Institute
Sub total 1622 389 2011 1560 378 1938 2836 506 3342
Total 12759 | 10854 | 23613 9784 9873 19657 | 14234 | 7726 | 21960
03 In-plant Training
Undergraduates & Diploma
expectants 3928 1555 5483 3179 | 1378 4557 2372 613 2985
Grand Total 16687 | 12409 | 29096 | 12963 11251 | 24214 16606 | 8339 | 24945

** Part time coursed too is included.
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The highest number of recruitment had been reported from the Colombo district when
considering all training classifications in the year under review. It recorded 2469
apprentices and the Gampaha district which recruited 1495 apprentices placed second
and the Marata district which recruited 1367 had become the third place. The Mannar
district which had recruited 216 apprentices has become the district with least number
of recruitment. The Colombo district which had completed most number of apprentices
amounting to 1795 in this year has gone into records as the district which had trained the
highest number. The Matale district with its 244 apprentices had been the district which
accomplished the least number of apprentices. (Table 04)

The Colombo district which recorded 3253 apprentices that remained on training towards
the end of year has become the district with highest number of apprentices up to the end
of year and the Polonnaruwa district with 100 apprentices has been the district recorded
least number who remained in the training. (Table 04)

Table 05 : Summary of Training Activities for Centre-based Full Time Courses - 2013
(District and Regional Training Centres)

Number on
. e Number Number ..
Province District Recruited Completed Training as at

31/12/2013
Colombo 621 652 444
Western Gampaha 181 196 156
Kalutara 179 123 168
Kandy 415 363 326

Central Matale 98 116 86
Nuwaraeliya 246 266 143
Galle 408 254 371
South Matara 427 484 360
Hambantota 360 275 232
Jaffna 244 226 200

Mannar 92 47 83

North Vavuniya 94 161 70

Mulativu 0 59 0
Kilinochchi 178 66 186

Batticloa 35 0 33
East Ampara 310 307 122
Trincomalee 687 602 140
North Western Kurunegala 353 282 383
Puttalam 258 260 444
Anuradhapura 171 136 142

North Central Polonnaruwa 173 172 29
U Badulla 193 159 201
va Monaragala 105 167 104
Rathnapura 152 259 157
Sabaragamuwa  ["C e 278 243 239
Total 6258 5875 4819
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ndustrial Training Authority

In further studying on District Training Centres and Regional Training Centres, the most
number of student recruitment (687) had been reported from the Trincomalee district and
the Batticloa district recorded the least recruitments with 35 apprentices. (Table 05)

During the year 2013, no any recruitment of apprentices to training centre of the Mulativu

district had been reported.

The number of recruitments to training centres in the year 2013 had been reduced with

compared to that in the year 2012 due to main reason of decision to give priority for

Industry based apprentice training.

During the year under review, 5875 apprentices had completed training at training centres
and the Colombo district recorded as the district that given training to most number of
apprentices reaching 652. (Table 05)

Progress of National Training Institutes - 2013

Table 06 : Engineering Technical Institute - Katunayaka

. . Number on Training
Trade Duration | Number Recruited Number Completed as at 31/12/2013
(years)
Male | Female | Total Male | Female | Total Male Female | Total
Buildings ! 9 | 41 | 131 | e6 | 34 | 100 | 279 | 123 | 402
structures
- Water &
Civil Environmental 4 39 22 61 5 23 28 104 18 122
Highways & 4 30 | 13 | 43 | 25 | 4 29 | 58 | 78 | 136
Railways
Electrical (power) 4 57 23 80 42 14 56 178 54 232
Electrical Telecommunication 4 15 25 40 33 9 42 77 30 107
Electronic 4 25 17 42 23 10 33 92 25 117
Automotive 4 29 29 8 8 65 65
Mechanical
General 4 90 6 96 46 46 219 4 223
Naval 4 35 35 19 19 87 87
Total 410 147 557 | 267 94 361 | 1159 | 332 1491
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Recruitment of 557 apprentices for National Engineering Diploma courses in the year
2013 by the Katunayaka Engineering Technological Institute had been a great milestone
achieved by the Authority. For the reason of recruiting less number of apprentices during
year 2012, a batch of 111 apprentices in the month of January 2013 and another batch of
446 had been recruited at the end of year.

361 apprentices were released at the end of year under review by accomplishing the
Diploma and 1491 apprentices are undergoing institutional or in-plant as at 31.12.2013.

Table 07 : Automobile Engineering Training Institute - Orugodawatta

Number on Training

Trade Duration | Number Recruited Number Completed as at 13/12/2013
(yrs.)

Male | Female | Total Male | Female | Total Male | Female | Total
Automobile Mechanic
(Special) 3 145 145 | 105 105 | 345 345
Automobile
Electrician(Special) 3 70 70 45 45 182 182
Machinist (Special) 3 24 24 14 14 62 62
Automobile
Painter(Special) 11/2 67 67 41 41 97 97
Automobile Tinker/
Welder(Special) 11/2 44 44 33 33 71 71
Automobile Air
Conditioning 2 39 39 12 12 54 54
Computer Application
Assistant 1 11 38 49 27 37 64 11 38 49
Total 400 | 38 | 438 | 277 | 37 | 314 | 822 | 38 | 860

In the year 2013, 438 apprentices had been recruited by the Automobile Engineering
Training Institute in Orugodawatta. At the end of this year, 314 apprentices had completed
their training and another 860 are undergone training.
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Table 08 : Apprenticeship Training Institute — Katubedda

Duration | Number Recruited Number Completed | Number on Training
as at 31/12/2013

Trade (Yrs.)

Male | Female | Total Male | Female | Total Male Female | Total
Ref & Air condition Mechanic 2 30 30 32 32 47 47
Electrician 3 58 58 60 60 | 172 1 173
Electronic Craftsman 3 49 49 31 31 | 108 1 109
Fitter 3 12 12
Machinist 3 38 38 23 23 | 60 60
Carpenter 2 38 38 47 47 72 72
Construction Supervisor 11/2 29 29 25 11 36 30 5 35
Plumber 2 30 30 23 23 35 35
Book Binder 3 4 5 9 2 3 5 1 1ted 2
'T”efc";::jggy” & Communication | 4| qg | 20 | 40 |17 | 20 | 37 | 8 | 14 | 22
Computer Graphic Designer 11/2 11 18 29 11 21 32 13 10 23
Offset machine operator 1 13 13 11 1 12 12
3D Animation 11/2 9 6 15 16 18 34
Welder 25 25 15 15 | 66 66
National Information &
Communication Technological | 11/2 6 4 10
Diploma
Total 364 | 51 45 | 319 | 77 396 | 624 | 32 656

In the year under review, 415 apprentices had been recruited by the Katubedda
Apprenticeship Training Institute. At the end of the year, 396 apprentices had completed
their training and another 656 are undergone training.
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Part - Time Courses - 2013

1395 apprentices had joined with part-time courses during the year under review. The

Automobile Engineering Training Institute in Orugodawatta has set a record by being the

institute which recruited most number of apprentices for part-time course crossing 355

apprentices.

794 apprentices had been recruited for part time courses by district and rural training

centres in the year 2013. Recruitments for the year 2013 had been reduced when

compared with number in the year 2012 which recorded 2029 apprentices. In this year,

1785 apprentices had completed part-time courses and 700 apprentices are on training at
the end of the year. (Table 09)

Table 9 : Part-time Courses - 2013

District Number Recruited Number Completed Numbeg;)/nl;l"/;:lln;ng asat

Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female Total

Gampaha 03 22 25 13 36 49

Kalutara 29 66 95 24 53 77 11 26 37

Kandy 28 75 103 08 53 61 20 42 62

Galle 07 24 31 8 20 28 07 24 31

Matara 16 57 73 16 57 73

Hambantota 00 07 25 32

Kilinochchi 07 11 18 07 11 18

Kurunegala 24 94 118 | 26 70 96 16 65 81

Puttalam 03 03 06 03 03 06

Anuradhapura 05 13 18 05 13 18

Badulla 19 14 33 19 14 33

Ratnapura 13 72 85 90 176 266 13 71 84

Kegalle 42 147 189 41 138 179 15 37 52

Sub Total 196 | 598 794 | 262 656 918 87 278 365

?gi’;‘i’ﬁgiigilt’me 120 | 126 | 246 | 76 | 92 168 | 63 68 131

Automobile

Engineering 328 27 355 | 621 78 699 168 36 204

Training Institute

Total 644 | 751 | 1395 | 959 826 1785 318 382 700
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Table 10 : Summary of Training Activities

(Enterprise-based Apprenticeship Training at District Level) - 2013

Number Number
Province District Recruited | completed Number —on
Training
Colombo 1848 1143 2809
Western Gampaha 1289 692 1268
Kalutara 356 327 321
Kandy 477 368 344
Central Matale 276 128 237
Nuwaraeliya 193 131 118
Galle 731 390 705
Southern Matara 867 563 846
Hambantota 534 356 333
Jaffna 946 1121 843
Mannar 124 483 140
Northern Vavuniya 428 322 418
Mulativu 303 327 202
Kilinochchi 416 352 149
Batticloa 1000 820 955
Eastern Ampara 731 597 649
Trincomalee 490 526 414
North Kurunegala 476 436 247
western Puttalam 159 133 204
North Anuradhapura 801 398 558
Central Polonnaruwa 91 85 71
Badulla 692 489 557
Uva
Monaragala 362 306 354
Ranmtnapura 662 250 458
Sabaragama
Kegalle 298 183 238
Total 14550 10926 13438
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In the year 2013, 14550 apprentices had been recruited under the Enterprise based
apprentice training. Though this number had been a slow down when compared with that
in the year 2012(16061), it represents 50% of total recruitments and 61% from the total
recruitment excluding In-plant training. In the year 2012, this amount had recorded as
58% from total enrollments except In-plant training. In this year 10,926 had accomplished
training under Enterprise based apprentice system and 13438 apprentices were remained
on training at the end of the year.

The most number of recruitments (1848) under the Enterprise based apprentice scheme is
recorded by the Colombo district and the Polonnaruwa district with its 91 apprentices had
recorded the lowest recruitments. (Table 10)

Graph 12 : Recruitments from 2002 — 2012 & Recruitment Targets from 2013

up to 2017
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As a summary, the foregoing graph represents about the forecasted recruitment targets
from year 2013 to 2017 and the way recruitment were effected from year 2002 to 2012
in total.
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In-plant Training

In the year under review, 5483 applicants had been registered for In-plant training and out
of that number 2985 are Diploma applicants and other 2374 are Degree applicants.

In this year, 4557 had completed In-plant training. At the end of the year 2985 had been
undergoing In-plant training out of which 2132 were undergraduates.

Table : 11 In-plant Training

Number Recruited Number completed Number on Training as at

Category 31/12/2013

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Diploma 1954 | 1031 | 2985 | 1878 | 1023 | 2901 | 712 141 853
seekers
Certificate 111 13 124 111 13 124
aspirants
Total 3928 1555 5483 3179 1378 4557 2372 613 2985

Graph 13 : Progress of In-plant Training from Year 2003 up to 2013

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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In studying further into the In-plant training, graph No. 13 depicts the difference of
number referred to In-plant training in the last decade. In a closer look at the forgiven
graph, it is visible that a remarkable upswing had been shown following years of 2009 to
name from 2010 to 2013.

Table 12 : Examination, Evaluation and Issuing Certificates

Number Num!)er passed in Number offered with
the Final X
Type Evaluated vocational test certificates
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

In-Plant (Enterprise based
& Centre based) 3982 3072 3252 2523 3201 2868
Situational level 4077 3366 3836 3148 5223%%* 3951
Rural level 1280 1518 1193 1422 1485%** 1489
Apprentice Training 412 312 360 273 360 273
Institute
Automobile Engineering 245 294 235 228 235 228
Training Institute
Eng'lneermg Technological 982 351 396 351 173 351
Institute
National Vocational tests 5993 6029 5727 5459 3750 3003
Skill based training 1431 1555 1379 1233 1217 1892
(Training centres)
National Vocational
Qualifications (Apprentice 135
training)
Other (trainees of 381 1793 349 1793 2083 1793
authority)
Sub total 18782 18290 16727 16430 18062 15848
Recognition of Prior 2885 | 3662 | 2813 3384 3372 4186
Learning (RPL)
Undergraduates 2722 3404 2644 3274
National Technology 180 | 621 180 613 180 95
Diploma
On the job training 356 613 356 613 356 613
Other 741 741 741
Total 24926 | 27331 22720 25055 21970 21483

*  Certificates for the National Technology Diploma are issued only for applicants.

** No. of total appraisals conducted in year 2012.
(this inclusive of appraisal of first, second,third and final years)

*** Included with Situational and Rural level apprentices whose appraisal conducted in the year 2011.
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In having a close look at on the trade tests, holding examinations and certificate issuing
perused in the year 2013, 27,331 trade tests had been conducted. This number has been
increased by 9.6% in compared with the same in year 2012 (24,926).

During the year under review, 21,483 certificates had been issued for all categories.
(Table 12)

Graph 14 : Evalulation and Certification 2012 - 2013

Number Evaluated Number Passed Number Certified
/ Tested Final Examination

During year 2013, most number of certificates had been issued under the Recognition of
Prior Leaning (RPL) amounting to 4186. Out of this, 24% had been increased compared
with year 2012. In addition, certificates had been issued to 3951 apprentices under
Situational system, 3003 apprentices who had got through the National Trade Test (NTT)
and for 2868 Enterprise based apprentices. (Table 12)
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Curriculum Development

67 curriculum for various courses related to varied vocational fields had been completed
in the year under review and referred to Divisions concerned.

Table 13 : Curriculum Development - 2013

. - Amount
Main purpose Activity 2012 2013
National Competency Standard (Level 1-4) 17 9
National Competency Standard (Level 5-6) 4 11
Assessment Resources (National competency 14 3
standard)
Development Curricula (National Competency Standard) 9
(Level 5-6) i
Training standards (National Apprentice
Certificates) 6 !
Question Papers 3 1
Curricula (National Competency Standard) 11 6
National Competency Standard 1 16
Validation National Competency Standard (Level 5-6) -
Assessment Resources (National Skill Based) -
Other Training Standards 1
Question Papers 6 2
National Competency standard - 3
Evaluations National Competency Standard 1 )
(Classification)
Appraisal Resources (National Skills Based) 3 -
Translations Question Papers 1 -
Total 68 67

Training standards related to vocational training field and 34 related sub variables had
been developed afresh in the year 2013. In addition, 28 validations and 28 revisions had
been made.

Accreditation of Courses and Registration of Training Centers

Table 14 : Accreditation of Courses and Registration of Training Centers

Main purpose Unit Progress
2012 2013
Accreditations No. of courses 41 57
Number of courses registered No. of centres 49 55

During the year under review, 57 accreditation coursed had been conducted in 55 training
centres.
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Distance Education

During the year 2013, the distribution of modules among 21,643 candidates is a remarkable
improvement. This amount is a 4% increase in compared with the year 2012 amounted
20,799.

Table 15 : Distance Education - 2013

No. of curricula issued by Leaning
Province District methods Development section
2012 2013
Head office 312 45
Colombo 3614 4592
Western Gampaha 1925 1655
Kalutara 2367 494
Kandy 1075 1900
Central Matale 1085 1125
Nuwaraeliya 1485 440
Galle 984 827
Southern Matara 1347 1932
Hambantota 774 834
Mannar 30
i 300 61
Northern Vavuniya
Kilinochchi 108
Mulativu 50
Eastern Ampara 350 58
1055 635
North western Kurunegala
Puttalam 877
1005 765
North Central Anuradhapura
Polonnaruwa 413 130
Badulla 421 1105
Uva
Monaragala 507 884
Ratnapura 100 1615
Sabaragamuwa
Kegalle 645 2516
Total 20799 21643
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In addition, reviewing modules in total and printing them colored with modernized way
and also uplifting apprentice training methods to a new dimension are milestones achieved
in the year under review.

In closely examining the distribution of courses in the last decade, course distribution
following the year 2010 had been increased with long term upsurge. (graph 15)

Graph 15 : Distribution of Modules 2003 - 2013

Career Guidance and Counselling

Career guidance and couselling had been given to 37,883 persons who belonged to all
walks of life during the year under review.

For this end, 107 programmes for the schooling students and 90 programmes for school
Leavershad been conducted. (Table 16)
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Table 16 : Career Guidance and Counselling

Programmes
[=7
=
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=
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z b o, S z £ & 5 = @ S
2 i S T¥| 25| R| = S
a [~ 77) S8 &% <5) @) Z
Head office 5 10 4 2 10477
Gampaha 16 5 5 13 3877
Kalutara 7 2 394
Kandy 1 2 161
Galle 5 8 755
Matara 19 13 7 9 4 8656
Hambantota 8 5 3 8 1027
Jaffna 2 2 4 784
Mannar 1 1 48
Kilinochchi 3 9 1 3 612
Battilcoa 3 1 337
Ampara 2 1 9 844
Kurunegala 3 2 1 617
Ratnapuara 12 3 5 13 6528
Kegalle 3 34 4 1 10 2766
Total 20 107 10 17 26 67 37883

Administration and Human Resources Development

According to the new recruitment procedure introduced for the Authority in the year under
review, it has been a remarkable upliftment on account of administration by recruiting to
vacancies exited and offering various promotions.

The cadre approved by the Authority has been 992 and out of which 71% could be
completed by the end of year 2013. During the year 2012, this amount had been 68% of
the approved cadre positions. (Table 17)
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Table 17 : Staff Information

Approved )
Service category cadre No. of recruited

position 2012 2013
Senior Manager 5 3 2
Medium scale manager 17 11 11
Academic and research 58 28 28
Junior manager 112 71 68
Implementation and Consultancy services 386 220 232
Related officers 2 1 0
Management Assistant Services 276 238 252
Primary level services 136 112 116
Total 992 684 709

In the year 2013, 77 employees had been recruited and 07 employees were promoted.
(Table 18)

Table 18 : Appointments and Promotions

Description Amount
Appointments (permanent

. 77
positions )

Promotions 7

During year under review, employee training programmes at local level for 409 employees

had been held. As well, 06 officers had been referred to foreign development programmes.
(Table 19 & 20)

Table 19 : Staff Development - Local training - 2013

. No. of
Description . .
participants
Degree 01
Certificate courses 14
Awareness raising programmes 394
Total 409
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Table 20 : Staff Development - Overseas Trainings - 2013

Programme Country No. attendees

Training Programme on SACOs

Global Knowledge Sharing Event and | India 01

Study Tour

Sri  Lanka Australia Technical Australia 01

Programme

Capacity Development Programme Korea 02

Technical and Vocational Education

Training Programme for Principle | Singapore 01

and Leaders

Tralr?mg on Quality of Home China 01

appliances

Total 06
Propaganda

During the year under review. 123 publicity programme covering whole island through
various media had been conducted by Propaganda Unit of the Authority. In addition,
participation of Authority had been made at various exhibitions and programmes.

Planning and Information Activities

All information to be taken up in respect of training and other progress are collected,
referred and compiling of reports is handled by this section and also provide information
required to take management decisions to top management of the authority, ministry and
other institutes.

As well, acquiring capacity for giving information on time by getting information through
the computer data package and ability to commence information collection system through
internet covering Whole Island is one of the new milestones achieved by the Authority.

Further, the preparation of the Action Plan and Corporate plan peculiar to the Authority

and supervising training activities of the year too had taken place during year under

review.
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08. Other Activities

The following activities and programmes in addition to training programmes were held
throughout the year under review.

Appointing graduates belonged to Sinhalese, English and Tamil nationalities covering all
25 districts to the post of Inspector and offering them with appointment letters.

A Dansela and a pandol in line with the Vesak festival , associated with Video mapping
technology was exhibited for the first time ever in Asia, on the premises of head office of
NAITA.
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Offering NVQ 3 level certificates to
29 rehabilitated trainees under “LTTE
soldier rehabilitation programme”
handled by Kandakadu Rehabilitation
Centre in Polonnaruwa under direction of
NAITA was held at the main auditorium
of  Engineering Technology Institute,

Katunayaka under the patronage of Hon.
Dallas Alahapperuma. Minister of Youth
Affairs and Skill Development.

The 21st Certificate Awarding ceremony of the Automobile Engineering Training Institute
(Japan tech). Orougodawatta. governed by NAITA under the purview of Ministry of
Youth Affairs and Skills Development was held in the BMICH.

Programmes Implemented by District Offices

Hambantota

1. Public health programmes organized
by Hambantota district office”

* HIV “AIDS” programme with participation
of Public Health Officers

* Programme on Dental Healthcare were

held in unison with LINK company and district
office.

2. Personality Promotion and Leadership Training Programme was held with the
participation of “Nawajeewana”, a non-governmental organization in the Tangalle area.
3. A programme on Child &Women security
and a programme for maintaining law and
order was conducted with contribution of
Tangalle police.

4. Scene of swimming training by Enterprise
trainees of Hambantota District Office at Life
Saving Programme conducted with Beliatta

Technology College.
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The Programe themed “Daily Ayurvedic Calendar for Healthy life *“ organized by the
Pallekele, Kundasale Ayurvedic Medical Association was heldin the Kandy District
Office.

Badulla

A sender for 104 employees was held in the “ Weligama Hotel ,Badulla with the
participation of Chairman of the NAITA.

A series of Vocational Direction programme for following various targeted groups was
conducted by the Galle District office throughout the year 2014.

School drop - outs

Schooling children

Unemployed youths

Governmental and Non - governmental field officers

Trained certificate holders

o /20030 04 28! IEME

Wesak Observation campaign Sports ﬁestg held on
conducted by Matara District Office Sanath J a};jlsurlya ground's,
on its premises’ Matara for 42" commemoration of
NAITA
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The presentation by a team of students at
Hatton Regional Apprenticeship Training
Centre at Model Fair organized by the
Nuwaraeliya district office.

Kegalle

Few programmes conducted by district office
. Drugs Eradication Workshop - for trained apprentices

. Sports Festival

New Year festival held in Swarnajayanthi
Maha Vidylalaya organized by Kegalle

Elle event participated by Kegalle
district office staff and apprentices for
district office 42" commemoration of NAITA

NAITA - Puttatam, Beautyculture Training Center

Uplifting place in which bridal care course

is conducted at district office as a Beauty

Parlour.
. Dress Making Exhibition
. Bridal Exhibition
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New Year festival organized by
Puttalam district office

* Blood donation programme
» Teachers’ day celebration
* Christmas festival

» Sarasvati pooja

Visiting district office by GIZ Arrival of UN represented commissioner to
representatives. District Training Centre.
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National Institutes

AETT - Automobile Engineering Training Institute

Among programs organized by the
Automobile  Engineering Training
Institute of Orugodawatta, the cultural
programme,openingofColourMatching
Unit in line with 24th anniversary and
a blood donation campaign were held
with the participation of Mr. Chandana

Arunadeva, Hon. Chairman.

™

" Declare opening of three storied
hostel facilitation for around 100
student’s constructed a new in
Katunayaka

A series of programs for betterment of
staff had been organized throughout the
year 2013. Among them the Consultation
System Proramme for lecturers and Safe-
ty programme in industries were in promi-
nence.Here with the New year celebrations
occssion was held sucessfully in 2013 in-
stead of the sinhala and tamil new year.
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FOREWORD

U CCO FORTH .1
NA E & IND L TRAINING AUTHORITY
Funds Released
Allocation by the Treasury
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Recurrent Expenditure Grant 630,000,000.00 564,000,000.00
Capital Expenditure Grant - CF 160,000,000.00 121,700,000.00
790,000,000.00 685,700,000.00
Add: Estimated Income 43,000,000.00 61,237,045.72
Total Income for the year 833,000,000.00 746,937,045.72
Aid received during the year 2013 from other agencies are indicated below :
' ; Value of items/Funds
Aid Received ( Recurrent ) - schedule - 14 (Page - 44) 11,667,717.25
Differed Income - 13 (Page - 43) 85,633,350.73

97,301,067.98

The following documents are included:-

i. Statement of Financial Position as at 31* December 2013

ii. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 December 2013
iii. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31* December 2013

iv. Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31 December 2013

v. Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31* December 2013

Chandana Arunadeva Silva
Chairman
National Apprentice & Industrial Training Authority.
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31.12.2013

Page  31.12.2013 31.12.2012
_ o 0 Mo (Rs) (Rs)
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 A 2 904,803,170.81  954,610,900.22
Capital Work in Progress 3 21 79,801,952.98  54,283,088.57
984,605,123.79 1,008,893,988.79
Current Assets
Stocks 4 B 2 7,806,931.52  9,799,039.85
Receivables 5 C 22 74,087,396.71  73,230,621.39
Deposits, Prepayments & Advances 6 D 25 36,045,02064  19,657,417.25
Short Term Investments 7 29 76,179,993.34  79,406,790.20
Cash in Transit 8 29 0,542,631.38  11,322,050.81
Cash & cash Equivalents 9 30 37,005,144.37  31,864,375.61
240,757,117.96  225,080,295.11
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables 10 31 82,335287.21  93,941,300.28
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) 158,421,830.75 __ 131,136,994.85
Total Assets 1,143,026,954.54 1,140,032,983.64
Equity & Liabilities
National Apprentice & Industrial Training Fund 1 39 304,808,452.43  315,140,760.19
Capital Reserve 1,391,526.65  1,401,610.50
306,109,079.08  316,542,370.69
Non Current Liabilities
Provision for Gratuity 12 43 152,002,656.76  140,170,685.57
Differed Income 13 43 684,734,318.70  683,319,927.38

Accounting policies and notes page 06 to 52 form an integral part of the Financial Statements,

Director Finance

For and on behalf of Board of Management

Chandana Arunadeva Silva
Chairman

1,143,026,954.54 1 140,032,983.64
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY

M INC TH 311
Page 2013 2012
Note o (Rs) (Rs)

INCOME
Government Grant - Recurrent 564,000,000.00 586,000,000.00
Profit on PU & PTC 11(b) 41 2,750,900.87 1,108,905.75
Deffered Income Transfered 13 43 85,633,350.73 93,329,527.88
Other Aid- Recurrent 14 44 11,667,717.25 11,374,063.20
Other Income 15 45 61,075,923.22 42 171,695.97

TOTAL INCOME 725,167,801.07 733,984,192.80

LESS: OPERATING EXPENSES

TRAINING EXPENSES
Apprenticeship Allowances 16 47 - 9,761,267.30
Training Consumables 17 47 16,462, 264,26 16,421,145.82
Other Training Expenses 18 47 76,490,223.59 106,862,137.48
Staff cost 19 48 212,763,718.70 190,438,776.26
Staff cost - Other Expenses 191 48 21,173,496.99 18,539,801.99
Transportation and communication 20 49 50,011,243.76 39,547,663.40
Supplies and office Requisites 21 49 9,161,283.17 8,434 554,95
Equipment maintenance 22 50 62,277,219.26 54 224 997.40
Premises maintenance 23 50 96,390,093.20 93,503,539.56

544 729,542 93 538,733,884.16

ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE EXPENSES
Staff Cost 19 48 114,565,079.30 102,543,956.45
Staff Cost - Other Expenses 191 48 11.401,113.77 9,982 970.30
Transportation & Communications 20 49 26,929,131.25 21,294, 895.67
Supplies & Office Requisites 21 49 4 932 998.63 5,080,144.98
Equipment Maintenance 22 50 33,533,887.29 29,198,075.53
Premises Maintenance 23 50 51,902,357.88 50,348,059.76
Audit Fees 377.,488.10 484 598.00
Finance & Other Expenses 24 50 5,113,780.24 5,562,588.55

248,755,836.48 224 495.289.23

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 793,485,379.39 763,229,173.39

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (68,317,478.32) (29,244 980.50)
H OMPRE I N

Revaluation Surplus / (Deficit)

Foreign Countries Subsidiary Co. Assets

Exchange Surplus / (Deficit)

Gratuity Valuation Surplus / (Deficit)

Fair Value measure Gains / (Losses)

NET COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 39 (68,317,478.32) {29,244 580.59)

Transferred to National Apprentice &

Industrial Training Fund

o1
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013

2013 2012
RS Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/(Deficit) from Operating Activities (68,317,478.32)  (29,244,980.60)
Adjustments in respect of Previous years 3,664,875.17 63,569,027 .40

(64,652,603.15) 34,324,045 80
Gratuity paid during the Year (9,362,233.50)  (10,010,778.99)
Part Time Income (2,790,909.87) (1,108,905.75)
Part Time & Central Fund Capital Reserve (3.237,767.01)  (2,084,431.69)
Part Time & Central Fund Obligatory Requirement Resarve (1,618,883.51) (1,042,215.84)
Adjustments in respact of pravious years for PTG 1,207 412.82 (50,608.62)

(80,364,984.21) 20,027,105.92
Non Cash Movements
Long outstanding creditors (4,234,354.43)
IT Income Resarve (33,994,751.00)
Depreciation 130,923,370.07 893, 717.612.01
Pro. for bad & doubtful debts on Staff Loans 232,599.79 (689,294.79)
Pro. for bad & doubtful debts on Sundry Dabtors 88,095.73 (437,801.05)
Under {Over) provision for Obsolete Stock (14,742.08) (2.50)
Provision for Gratuity 21,284 204 69 18,868,367.93
Aid Recaived 8,169,781.00 64,519,856.64
Aid on motor vehiclas (63,800,000.00)
AlD Recaived Budumedura (719,866.84)
Demclishing of ATl Boundary wall (1,000,000.00)
Aid on motor vehicles (4,074,000.00)
Increasa in Library Fund (289,000.00)
Differed Income Increase/Decreasse T696,177.15  (42,073,454.64)
{Increasa )/ Decreasa in Stocks 1,902,108.34 1,566,369.84
({Increase) / Decreasa in Recaivables {856,775.32) 4,080,842.71
{Increasa) / Decraasa in Deposits, Prepayments & Advances (16,387,603.38)  29,778,600.90
Increase N Decrease) in Payables (11,606,013.05) (27,164,640.34)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities A (8,826,648.13) 124,564,457.20
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Motor Cycle Revenue Resarve
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (87,089,022.04) (392,253,867.37)
Decrease /{increase) in Capital Works in Progress (25,518,864.41)  (28,040,118.56)
Disposal Proceeds 49 087.05 16,351.32
Met Cash Flow from Investing Activities B (112,538,799.40) (420,277,634.61)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Capital Grant from Treasury 121,700,000.00  331,000,000.00
Met Cash Flow from Financing Activities c 121,700,000.00  331,000,000.00
MNet Increases/{Decreases) in Cash & Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C) 334 552.47 35,286,822.60
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of the period lmafentiem A5i0sem
Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of the period 122,727,769.09 _ 122,393,216.62

Analysis of balance of cash & cash equivalents as shown in the Financlal Position

Change inthe Change in the

e ki Year 2013 Year 2012
Cash & cash nqmvﬂhﬁ'.‘l 37,005,144 37 31,664,375.61 5,340,768.76 (9,431,110.25)
Cash in-transit 8,542 631.38 11,322,050.81 (1,779,419.43)  3,858325.75
Investments 76,179,993.34 79,406,780.20 (3.226,796.85) 40.859,607.10
122,727,769.09 122,393,216.62 334 55247 35,286 822.60
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MATIONAL APPRENTICE AND INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Motor
A tad Proftt on Motor Cycle Demolishing of
Description Part Time  Ald Recetved m Cycle Revenua AT Boundary Copial  Obligetory Total
Fund Accounts Capital Reserve Waill Fund Resarve on  Resarvs on
Resarve Part Time __ Part Tima

Balance as o 01,01.2013
Nel Surphus | (Defict)

transferrad from Income &
Expendiure AC

Income Transfermed from
Part Time Account
Govermment Capital Gran

Adjusiments in respect of
Provious Years

Increase in Specified
ntermal Funds

Increase in Speciied
Extemal Funds

(520,548, 757.02) 44,027,168.07 TEIBITE31.84 M TIOTS 378811000 348202028 2,084.431.60 104221584 315,140,760.45

(B8, I1TATEIZ)  4,141,440.70

(64,1785,037.53)
(2,790,000.96) {2.790,009.86)
42,740,112,98 42, 740,112,086
ABBLBETEAT 3,084 87517
158, 563, 008,84

1,000,00000 3,237,767.01 161888350 7445051735

(B4.519,867.11) 209,000.00 (B4,220,887.11)

A477,050,200.23) 48,168.608.88 TIT,117.084.73 327.730.75 3,788,110.00

1,000,000.00 5 198.70 2861
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NATIONAL APPRENTICES AND INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013

Note - 01
General Accounting Policies

1 Dzporting Entity
Towa Mational Apprentices and industrial Training Authority (herein after ref=rred to as "Authority”) which is situated at No.
971, Sri Jayewardenepura Mawatha, Welikada, Rajagirtya was incorporated by Tertiary & Vocational Education Act No.
20 of 1980,

2 Basls of Preparation
The Financial Statements of the organization have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principals and Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS).

Thesa Financial Statements presanted in accordance with LKAS and Rupees have been prepared on historical cost
3 Comparative Information
3.1 The previous year figures and phrases have been re-aranged wherever necassary to conform to the curment year's
presantation.

4 Government Grants & Subsidies

4.1 Govemment Grants on which the organization depends for its expenditure are being accounted on a recaipts basis.
Grants related to recurment expenditure are being presanted as a credit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
account whereas the grants released to Capital Expenditure are being credited directly to the Mational Apprentices
& Industrial Training Fund.

4.2 Grant related to assets and Grant in the form of transfers of assets are recognized as defermed income in the
comprehansive Income statemnent on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related assats.

5 Assets and the bases of their valuation
51 Stocks
Stocks have generally been valued at the cost and provision is made at 5% for obsolete stocks of printed materials.

5.2 Receivables
Receivables are stated at the amount expeciad to be realized and 100% provision has been made for Bad and

doubtful debts of staff who ane not in the sanvice of the authority as at 31.12.2013. 5% provision has bean made as
bad and doubtful debts all other debtors excapt staff in services

§.3 Property, Plant and Eguioment
{a). Recognition and Measurement
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or impaimment loss

(b). Cost
The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly atiributable cost of
bringing the assets to working condition for its intended usa

Subsaquent expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring ,extending or improving assets of parmanent nature
in order to camy or increase performance of the Authority have been treated as capital expenditure

ry ftems having short ife nature and are not material to capitalize are written off to Statement of
Cnrrpmhﬂummm However, for the purposa of control these itern are inventoried and physical control is
exercised.

{d). Depraciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the assets

Rate of depreciation

Over the period of
Lease hold Land laase
Buildings 5%
Machinery & Equipment 10%
Fumiture & fittings & Office Equipment 10%
Computer & Accessories 25%
Library Books 10%

Motor Vishicles 54 25%



5.4 Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits at bank, short term highly liquid
investments readily convertible to know amounts of cash.

For the purpose of cash Flow Statement, cash in hand and at Bank, short term investments, cash in transit are
treated as cash and cash equivalent.

6 Liabiiities and provisions
All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and adequate provisions are
made for fiabilitles which are known to exist but the amount of which cannot be determined accurately
Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as curment liabllites in the
balance sheet Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-cumrent liabilites in the
Statement of Financial Position.

6.1 Gratuity Provision
Provision has been made for the gratuity payable from the initial year of services to all employees. However the
Gratuity Act. 12 of 1883 and SLAS 16, the liability to an employee arises on completion of five years of continued
services.

6.2 Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions 1o a defined contribution plans ane recognized as an expanse in the income statement
as incurred. The Authority contributes a sum not less than 15% and 3% of the gross emoluments of employees to
Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) and to the Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) respectively.

7 Bevenue

Grants received from the Govemment, Local & Foreign Akl received towards recurment expenditure and the
miscellaneous income of the Autharity are credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income Account. The
amounts spent on major repairs and improvements for capital Assets out of capital grant but not capitalized were
charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income Statement.

The Surplus/ (Deficit) or Income over Expenditure has been arrived at after making provisions for all known
liabilites and depreciation of fixed assets.

All Expenditure incurred in operating the Authority and maintaining its capital assets in a state of efficiency has

* been charged to revenue.
Expenditure incumed in Training, Administration and Finance activities are apportioned as follows.
Training Expenses 65%
Administration and Finance Expenses 5%

made in the finandial statermeants.

9 Events after the balance sheet date
The materiality of events occurming after the balance sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments,
wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts.

According to the Public Finance letter PE/STBD/4/2007 dated 27.07.2007 & lack of provision, Revaluation of Property
10 Plant & Equipment was not made.

11 Differed Income Increasa/ Decraase is shown as Non Cash Movements in the Statement of Cagh Flows.

Appropriations have been made from the Central Fund and Part time Accounts to the following funds with the approval
12 of the board of management as follows.

Consolidated Fund 35%
Capital Requirement Fund 50%
Obligatory Requirement Fund 50%

In addition to the above 40% of the profit is transferred to the Central Fund with the approval of the board of
management.

13 Adjustment in respect of previous years accounts in the following Statements of Financial Performances have been
adjusted to the opening balances of the respective statements as follows.

Rs.
National Apprentice and Industrial Training Fund 3,664,875.17 Cr.
Part time & Fee levying Course Account H/O &Provinces 2,185,752.75 Cr.
Printing Unit ATI 12,789.96 Dr.

Production & Fee Levying Course Account ATI 55 822,431.86 Dr.
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013

Note | Sch. No. 2013 2012
Sroparty, Plant and Equipment 2 A S04 803,170.81 954,610,900.22
'Capita! Work in Progress 3 75,801,852.98 54, 283,088.57
Stocks 4 B 7,806,831.62 9,799,039.85
Receivables 5 c 74,087,396.71 73,230,621.39
Deposits, Prepayments & Advances 6 36,045,020.64 19,657 417.25
Investments T 76,179,993.34 79,406,790.20
Cash in Transits 8 8,542 6831.38 11,322,050.81
Cash & Bank Balances 8 37,005,144.37 31,664,375.61
Payables 10 82,335,287.21 93,841,300.26
NAITA Fund 1 304 808,452.43 315,140,760.19
Provision for Gratuity 12 152,092, 656.76 140,170,685.57
Differed Income 13 684,734 318.70 683,319,927.38
Other Ald - Recurrent 14 11,667, 717.25 11,374,063.20
Other Income 15 61,075,823.22 42 171,695.97
Apprenticeship Allowances 16 - 9,761,267.30
Training Consumables 17 16,462 26426 16,421,145.682
Other Training Expenses 18 76,490,223.59 106,862,137.48
Staff Cost 19
Training Expenses 212,763,718.70 190,438,776.26
Admin & Finance Expenses 114,565,079.30 102,543 556 .45
327,328,798.00 202 982,732.70
Staff Cost - Other Expenses
Training Expenses 18/ 21,173,.496.99 18,5309,801.99
Admin & Finance Expenses 11,401,113.77 9,882,970.30|
32,574,610.78 28,522,772.29
Transportation & Communication 20
Training Expenses 50,011,243.78 39,547.663.40
Admin & Finance Expenses 26,820,131.25 21,294,895.67
76,840,375.01 60,842,559.06
Supplies & Office Requisites 21
Training Expenses 9,161,283.17 9,434 554.95
Admin & Finance Expenses 4,932 998 63 5,080,144.98
14,084,281.80 14,514,699.93
Equipment Maintenance 22
Training Expenses 62,277.219.26 54,224 997.40
Admin & Finance Expenses 33,533,887.29 29,198,075.53
) 85,811,108.55 8342307293
Premises Maintenance 23
Training Expenses 96,390,093.20 93,503,539.56
Admin & Finance Expensas 51,802 357.688 50,348,059.76
148,292 451.08 143,851,589.32
Finance & Other Expenses 24 5,113,780.24 5,562,588.55
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013

CENTRAL FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31.12.2013

2013 2012
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Profit BIF 24,433,146.90 23,701,207.40
Capital Requirement Fund 1,806,748.89 442 BT0.88
Obligatery Requirement Fund 953,374.94 221,435.44
Total 27,293 271.73 24 365513.74
e e e —————
REPRESENTED BY :
CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Deposit - Bank of Caylon 3,000,000.00
Fixed Deposit -P/B Nugegoda 282,361.59
Fixed Deposit - RDB 15,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Fixed Deposit - Sanasa 861,217.91 74097206
Fixed Deposit - P/B Nugegoda 0.00 8,800,000.00
Debtors -HO & P O O - PUPTC 931,408.14 616,968.67
Debtors - AT | - PU/PTC 1,207,247.99 1,919,180.03
Debtors - |[ET - PUWPTC 84,602.66 207,363.07
Debtors - AE T | - PLYPTC 53181247 B815,488.64
Debtors - NAITA-H O 179,667.02
Debtors - Printing Unit 72,708.33 2,640,880.36
Debtors - NAITA Medical Insurance 1,784,515.68 2.696,066.30
Bid bond (Ministry of Policy Dev. & imp.) 26,700.00 26,700.00
Savings Accounl -917 2,489,022.86 2.377,354.02
Savings A/C - P/B Nugegoda 306,819.99
Fixed Deposit Interast Recaivable B63,167.81 171, 728.25
Cash 1,710,432.96 28,869,756.80 411,148.23 24,854 908.24
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors - ATI (Sale of wood items)
Consolidated Fund PUPTC 1,576,485.07 476,937.89
Creditor - NAITA 52 456,61
Creditor - H'O - WUSE/GTZ Cash Balance
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,576.485.07 520,354.50
27,293.271.73 24,365,513.74
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2013
Description 2013 2012
INCOME :
40% Profit Contribution from Printing Unit 72,708.33 106,507.09
40% Profit Contribution from PU/PTC -HO & PO 831,408.79 616,089.32
40% Profit Contribution from PUPTG - ATI 1,207,247.99 875.470.05
40% Profit Contribution from PU/PTC - IET 16,146.58 . B8,456.08
40% Profit Contribution from PU/PTC - AETI 137 669.00 421,34517
Savings Account Interest 2,143,347 .87 4,508,528.56 754 271.96 284301967
EXPENDITURE
Bank Charges 4,285.50 840.00
Staff Service 4,285.50 1,579,500.00 1,580,340.00
ProfitLoss) for the year 4,504,243.06 1,362,678.67
35% of profit transfer to Consolidated Fund 1,576,485.07 476,937.89
Net Profit after appropriation of Consolidated Fund 2,927,757.99 B85, 741.78
50 % of Appropriation for Capital Requirement 1,463,879.00 442 870,80
Net Profit after appropriation of Capital Requirement 1,463,879.00 442 870.80
50 % of Appropriation for Obligatory Requirements 731,939.50 221,435.44
Surplus f{Deficit) for the year 731,839.50 22143544
Balance B/F at the beginning of the year 23,701,207.40 23,464,600 51
Adjustment in respect of previous years 15,171.45
24,433,146.90 23,701,207 .40
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The Chairman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the National Apprentice
and Industrial Training Authority for the year ended 31 December 2013 in terms of

Section 14(2) (c) of the Finance Act. No. 38 of 1971.

The audit of financial statements of the National Apprentice and Industrial Training
Authority for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprising the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information was carried out under
my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 13(1) of the
Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 and Section 56 (2) of the Tertiary and Vocational
Education Commission Act No.20 of 1990. My comments and observations which |
consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Authority in terms of Section
14(2)(c) of the Finance Act, appear in this report. A detailed Report in terms of Section
13(7)a) of the Finance Act was furnished to the Chairman of the Authority on 31 March
2015.

1:2  Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standard and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatements whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards
consistent with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI-
1000-1810). Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial
statements. Sub - sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of
1971 give discretionary power to the Auditor General to determine the scope and

the extent of the audit.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this
report.

Financial statements

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of
this report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority as at 31
December 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard.

Comments on Financial Statements,

Accounting Deficiencies.

The following accounting deficiencies were observed.

(a) The advance amounting to Rs. 200,000 paid to a contractor had been brought to
accounts as building repairs and maintenance expenditure.

(b) Instead of accounting the buildings at a cost of Rs. 43,717,272 which had been
utilized after completion of the entire construction work as assets, it had been
accounted as work in progress and a sum of Rs.3,988,721 mmmd on the
construction being in progress had been brought to accounts as assets, As a
result, depreciation for the year had been understated by Rs.1,986,428.

(c) As a result of miscalculation, the provision for gratuity for 04 persons had been
understated by Rs.772,191.

(d) Action had not been taken to identify and bring to accounts the direct deposits
amounting to Rs. 1,821,660 received by the Bank.
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() Provisions amounting to Rs.790,000 payable in respect of Employees’

Provident Fund and Employee Trust Fund had not been made in the

accounts.

(f) Interest income of the fixed deposits had been understated by Rs.443,451.

Lack of evidence for audit.

The following items shown in the financial statements could not be satisfactorily
vouched in audit due to the unavailability of evidence indicated against each item.

Description

(a) Stock

(b) Advances (Outstanding
since 1995)
(c) Sundry debtors

(d) Sundry Creditors

(e) Purchase of Deyatakirula
T-shirts and caps

(f) Printing of 1,000 manual
for the Commonwealth
Heads of Government
Meeting

(g) Staff develpoment

Value

Evidence not made available

Rs.
7,896,932

1,254,385
4,484,286
5,124,502

238,700

200,000

498,175
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2.2.3 Unreconciled Accounts

A difference of Rs. 149,816 between the balances of the bank accounts shown in

the financial statements and the balances of the cash books was observed.

2.3 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observations are made.

(a) Even though a period of 05 years, 3 to 05 years and 1 to 3 years had elapsed in
respect of debtor balances amounting to Rs. 2,144,244, Rs.1,538,095 and
Rs.1,593,591 respectively recoverable from 24 debtors, such balances had not

been recovered up to date.

(b) The value of the internal debtor balances as at the end of the year under
review was Rs. 24,107,436 out of which a sum of Rs.2,496,645 had not been
settled even by December 2014.

(c) Action had not been taken to recover the loan balance of Rs. 209,185
recoverable from the employees who had vacated their posts, even by the end

of the year under review.

(d) Action had not been taken to settle 58 advance balances of Rs. 1,601,772
granted to the external parties by the Authority during the year from 1995 to
2012, even by the end of the year under review.

(e) Creditors balances amounting to Rs.466,058 older than a period of 03 years
had not been settled. Further, since the debtor of the cancelled cheque
amounting to Rs.27,704 had not been accurately determined, it had been

shown under the sundry debtors.
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2.4  Non- compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management decisions

The following non-compliances were observed

Reference to laws, rules and Non compliance

regulations etc.

(a) Section 11 of the Finance  In case of investments of funds, the Authority should
Act. No.38 of 1971 obtain the approval of the Ministry of Finance and
Planning. Nevertheless, the Authority had not obtained
the required approval in connection with the

investment amounting to Rs.76,179,993.

(b) Establishments Code of

the Democratic Socialist
Republic of 5ri Lanka
(i) Section 6.1 of chapter Even though the overtime allowance due to be paid for
Vil an hour should be computed as 1/8" of a day’s pay and
a day’s pay should be computed as 1/30" of the
monthly salary, the Authority had paid overtime
allowance by computing a day’s pay at a rate of 1/20"
of the monthly salary.
(ii) Section 2.2 of chapter Even though 10 per cent of the allowances received for
IX the duties performed outside the official hours should be

credited to the Consolidated Fund, it had not been so
done in respect of lecturer fees of part time courses and

other allowances.
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‘i) Section 4.4.3 of
chapter XIV

(c) Financial Regulations of
The Democratic Socialist

Republic of Sri Lanka

(i) Financial Regulation 104

(ii) Financial Regulation 210
(1)

(iii) Financial Regulation 395
(a), (c)

(iv) Financial Regulation
702 (3)

Contrary to the n=~isinns in the Establishments Code,
employees who were engaged in the service in the North
and East had been paid Rs. 190,136 at the rate of
Rs.3000 per day.

A sum of Rs.1,285,534 had been incurred for the repair
of 12 vehicles met with accidents during the year under
review, but no preliminary inquiry had been conducted
on any of the aforesaid accidents. The reports of losses
and damages on vehicle accidents caused during the
year under review and the previous years had not been
furnished to the Auditor General.

Eventhough payments should be made so as to receive
the discount benefits, action had not been taken
accordingly in making payments for all water bills and
assessment tax of the Authority.

The bank reconciliations statements should be prepared
and furnished to the Auditor General before 15" of the
following month. Nevertheless, bank reconciliation
statements had been furnished to audit in September
2014.

Copies of all agreements signed during the year under

review had not been furnished to the Auditor General.
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(v) Financial Regulation 802 Eventhough Heads of Departments should take steps to
(1) ensure that the vehicles do not remain idle, 13 vehicles
of the Authority had remained idle for more than a

period of two years.

(vi) Financial Regulation Eventhough daily running charts and monthly
1646 summaries relating to vehicles should be furnished to
the Auditor General before 15" of the following month,
daily running charts and monthly summaries relating to
12 vehicles for the year under review and the running
charts of 17 vehicles relating to 74 months had not been

submitted.

{d) Public Finance Circular No Hundred and eighty three persons, who held the posts not
446 dated 01 September 2010  covered by the provisions in the circular pertaining to the
supply of telephone facilities for the public institutions and

the officers and the settlement of bills, had been provided

with mobile phone connections since the year 2012 up to the

end of the year under review and a sum of Rs.2,745,000 had

been paid by prescribing the approved limit as Rs.1000 for

them.
(e} Public administration Fuel consumption should be tested once in a 06 months,
Circular No.41/90 dated 10 whereas it had not been so done.
October 1990
(f) Sections 1.1.6 (v) and 1.3.1 Instances were observed that vehicles had been individually
(iii) of the Public assigned to officers who were entitled to transport facilities

Administration Circular No in groups.
22/99 dated 08 October 1999.
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(g) Sectiorr ¢ T olthe Ministry  Courses had been conducted wi* + .+ wr number of
Circular No. apprentices than the minimum numbe. of apprentices
TVET/1/CIR/2004/1 dated 28 required to be participated in a course and prior approval of
January 2004, the Ministry had not been obtained therefor.

(h) Section 5 (1) of the Payment ~ An employee who retired from the service should be paid his
of Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983 gratuity within 30 days from the date of termination of his
service. Nevertheless, it was observed that payments had

been made with delays in 12 instances.

3 Financial Review

3.1 Financial Results

According to the financial statements presented, the financial results of the
Authority for the year ended in 31 December 2013 had been a deficit of Rs.
68,317,478, as compared with the corresponding deficit of Rs. 29,244,981 for the
previous year thus indicating a deterioration of Rs. 39,072,497 in the financial
result for the year under review as compared with the preceding year. The
increase in employee cost and decrease in Government grants had mainly given

rise to this deterioration.

3.2 Legal Cases Instituted in the Institute.

Three cases instituted by the Labour Department against the Authority for its
failure to make contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund in féspecl of three
employees, the case filed by the Authority with regard to the ownership of the
land in which the Wellawatta training centre is situated and the case filed against
the Authority in connection with the termination of the service of the Director
(Training)  for his failure to report for service without prior notice while on
no-pay leave, had not been disclosed in the accounts.
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4. Operations Review

4.1 Performance.

The following observations are made.
(a) Out of the 32,610 apprentices enrolled in the year under review 8,553 or 26 per
cent had dropped out the courses.

(b)  Though it was targeted to enroll 445 apprentices for 18 courses, these courses had
not been commenced. Further, without 70 per cent of the targeted apprentices of

72 courses, the relevant courses had been commenced.

(c) Details on the accomplishment of the activities specified in the Action plan are as

follows.
According to the Action Plan  Actual number
Description No.of No. of No.of No. of
Programmes  students Programmes  students
Conduct of Vocational Tests = 19,500 - 8,752
Personality Development 522 16,195 09 273
Programmes
Awareness programmes for 125 10,000 68 5,209
school children
Entrepreneurship Development 50 5,000 04 143
Programmes
Technical Training - 150 -
Lessons - 35,000 - 21,643
Mational  Vocational Tests - 4,200 - 3,003
Certificates.

(i) Though it was targeted to conduct vocational tests for 19,500 individuals during
the year under review, vocational tests had been conducted only for 8,752

individuals.
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Although the distribution of 35,000 modules among apprentices was the target,
the actual number of modules distributed amounted only to 21,643 which was a
drop of 38 per cent of the expected target.

Though it was expected to direct 150 employees of the Authority to technical
training, it had not been so done.

It had been targeted to issue 4,200 certificates under the National Vocational
Tests, whereas only 3,003 certificates had been issued.

Although it was expected to conduct 697 personality development programmes,
awareness programmes for the school children and entrepreneurship development

programmes, only 81 programmes had been conducted.

Management Inefficiencies

The following matters were observed.
Work in Progress

The following observations are made.

The constructions of hostels of National Institute of Engineering Technology and
National Apprenticeship Training Institute had not been completed within the
specified period and action had not been taken to recover the liquidated damages
of Rs. 4,873,074.

Eventhough the contract for the construction of Printing unit {Hem;] office) valued
at Rs. 6,808,477 was scheduled to be completed on 21 November 2013, it had not
been completed even by 04 November 2014. Lapses such as failure to obtain
extension for the period of contract, award of a contract amounting to
Rs.1,255,750 for the construction of another floor despite the works had not been
completed, failure to recover the liquidated damages despite action had not been
taken in terms of the agreements were observed.
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(iii)  Eventhough the contract for the construction of the wall of the National
Engineering Technical Institute was scheduled to be completed on 21 October
2013, works had not been completed even by December 2014. The period of
contract had not been extended and liquidated damages had not been recovered in

accordance with the agreement.

(iv)  An agreement had not been entered into with regard to the contact valued
at Rs.1,548,100 for the construction of the Vice- Chairman’s room (Head office)

(v)  There was no contact awarding letter or a signed agreement in respect of the
contract amounting to Rs. 5,455,000 for the construction of the auditorium.

(vi)  There was no contact awarding letter or a signed agreement with regard to the
contract for the construction of main lobby valued at Rs.1,999,500 (exclusive of
VAT). Even though Rs.200,000 had been paid on 28 February 2013, no payments
whatsoever had been made up to 25 December 2014.Infomation about the

completion of the work was not available.

(vii) There was no agreement relating to the contract valued at Rs.1,327,000 for the
development of the Head office premises. A sum of Rs. 700,000 had been paid to
the contractor, whereas information was not available to ensure whether the work
had been completed even by December 2014.

(b)  Exhibitions, Seminars and Advertising Expenditure

The following observations are made.

(i) Since the minimum prices presented for the creation of leaflets prepared for the
distribution at the Deyatakirula National Development Programme was
disregarded, an overpayment of Rs.12,000 had to be made.
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Withoit ¢« . auotations a sum of Rs. 108,000 hkad Heer pu'd as

accommodarion charges of the officers participated in the Dayatakiruia :~ational
Programme and a special allowance of Rs. 224,000 had been paid to those

officers.

Postal and Communication Charges

The following observations are made.

Official telephone charges of Rs.19,605 exceeding the approved limit had not

been recovered from the salaries of the respective officers.

A telephone of the head office had been handed over to the stores on 13
September 2013 without being utilized and a sum of Rs. 17,449 had been paid as
tax and other fixed charges despite it had not been utilized by any one.

The Mobile telephone connection package for 04 instructors recruited on contract
basis and a management assistant had been provided and a sum of Rs. 75,000 had

been paid at the rate of Rs.1000 per month,

Transactions Contrary to the Objectives.

Although the prime objective of the Authority is to plan and organize vocational
trainings of the industrial sector and performing other activates pertaining thereto,
a sum of Rs. 2,722,940 had been incurred out of the fund in respect of the Vesak
festival which was extraneous to the objective.
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4.4 Personnel Administration

The following observations are made.

(a) The approved cadre of the year under review was 992 while the actual cadre was
709. Accordingly, there were to 283 vacancies and action had not been taken to
fill such vacant posts.

(b)  In addition to the approved cadre, 24 employees had been recruited on casual,
temporary and contarct basis without obtaining the approval of the Ministry or the
Department of Management Services.

(c)  Employees attached to the training centres had been continuously working in the
same centres without taking action to transfer them.

(d)  An officer recruited on secondment basis for a period of one year had been
appointed to the permanent post of the Director Administration and Human
Resources before the completion of the above period. It was revealed in audit that
applications had not been called for the recruitment to this post and the
recruitment had been made contrary to the provisions in the Establishments Code
and he had been placed on the maximum salary scale on that post. Although this
matter had been pointed out in the previous year, necessary action had not been
taken.

5. Accountability and Good Governance

5.1  Budgetary Control

Significant variances were observed between the estimated income and
expenditure in the budget and the actual income and expenditure, thus indicating
that the Budget had not been made use of as an effective instrument of
management control.

T




Lo lod ecolimedoipd

wnbaiana) poaan wEE Soaubsar
Auditor General’s Department

| ¢

A

6. Systems and Controls

Weaknesses in systems and controls observed during the courseof audit were
brought to the attention of the Chairman of the Authority from time to time.
Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of controls.

(a) Stores Control

(b)  Fixed Assets

(c) Accounting

(d) Vehicle Utilization

(e) Apprentices and Training Activities
(H) Personnel Management

(g) Budgetary Control.

W.P.C.Wickramaratne
Acting Auditor General



Replies to the Report of the Auditor General as | «r the Section 14({2)(1) of Monetary Act No.
38 of 1971 with Regard to the Financial Statement s of the National Apprentice and Industrial
Training Authority for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

(a) The sum of Rs. 200,000/~ accounted as building repairs and maintenance for the year 2013 had been
transferred to the works-in-progress by Journal No. 642.

(b) As final payment of contracts had been conclude in the year 2014, the contracts concerned has been
accounted as works in progress in year 2013.

(¢) Gratuity payment for officers who recruited on 1* of January related to the year 2013 has not yet
calmlntudnnfhnsbmammmhdfmca]culaﬁngcmmltyinﬂmywlﬂnupudmauditdimcﬁm.

(d) Direct deposits valued Rs. 1,821,660/~ had not included in 2013 final accounts and it has been adjusted
in the 2014 final accounts as per the audit directions.

(e) A note as contingent liabilities is made for the responsibility held by Authority regarding cases filed
in respect of Eemployment Provident Fund. .

(f) The fixed deposit valued Rs. 5,900,000/~ has been re-invested by the Bank concerned after reaching
its matuaruty which had generated Rs.163,583.56as interest income from the said fixed deposit.
Cheques received to Authority from other institutes have been credited against an account at the head
office. After realizing them, said amounts would be invested. The delay is caused by realization
process in opening fixed deposits.

Description Value m
Rs. .
(a) | Stock 7,896,932 | Annual Board of Survey has been conducted and their
board report have prepared and sent to the Auditor
General's Department.
(b) | Advances (continued | 1,254,385 | Action was taken to send letters, reminders to the related
from 1995) parties and obtained balance confirmation to a certain
extent.
(c) | Sundry debtors 4,484 286 - _do -
(d) | Sundry creditors 5,124,502 - do - ; ~
(e) | Purchasing T-shirts and | 238,700 Note Date  of | Price | Amount | Total
caps - Deyara Kirula No. of | receiving | in expenditure
T -shirts - 151,200/- goods goods Rs.
Caps - 87,500/- | received
(14361 [ 2013.06.26 | 250/- | 150
14361 [ 2013.06.26 | 250/- | 125
14362 | 2013.06.26 | 250/- i‘?sju 87,500/~
14360 | 2013.06.26 | 630/- | 240 151,200/~
L—(f) inting 1000 hand books | 200,000 books printed for mmi MPs. Diplomatic officers
for Common wealth and foreign representative had been distributed and
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leaders summit in that could not practically be
%mﬂmﬂmgg&emr}fmmmhm
by makring attendance for not to have recurrences of this

nature in the future.

(g) | Employee progress 498,175 | A sum of Rs. 153,875/~ for accomoation ents, Rs,
300,000/- for foods and beverage and Rs. 00/- for 35
officers who attended have been paid.

2.2.3.. Unreconciled Accounts

There are variances between bank balances given in balance amounts in bank reconcilations of 07 institues
and their final accounts and balance amounts related to four institeues out of those institutes are tallied.
Action will be taken to refer other three accounts with variances to the Audit and Management Committee
and to get back recommendations needed.

The bank accounts numbers related to that are given below.

086-100191191020 .5)0 77.42)
003-100181200143 53.00
071-100103320674 (2719.13)
0276-100124535909 6850.00

(a) A sum ofRs. 1,835,039 from clearing Rs. Sﬂﬂ,lﬂﬂmrtnfdnbmrhnlanm omﬂﬁns , Rs.1,235,070
clmmgfmmlu 303 025 out of debtor balances remain between 3 - 1,393,057 from
clearing Rs. 200,534 mtnfﬂ:ednbturbuluwmngnlejrmtubemnrﬂdbyMayImS.

(b) Only a sum of Rs. 425,435 is in deposit by clearing Rs. 2,071,210 out of domestic debtor balances
amounting to Rs. 2,496,645 by May 2015.

(c) A sum of Rs. 128,430/- has been cleared by receipts 778/14/350351 out of loan balances valued Rs.
337,615/- to be recovered from the deserted employees. Balances unable to recover from deserted
officers are left in account. As those balances are not recoverable, they are projected in final accounts
as balances due from indefinite accounts.

(d) A sum of 365,388 out of advances amounting to Rs. 1,601,772 has been realized. Actions is taken to
recover the overdue blance.

{c)\falu:nfmncﬂodchuqmamomungmks ZT?NshowntmdﬂMturha]anmhnsheenmadlted
mhldmmnumumhmmammfurﬂuymmu

Compliance with laws and regulations

(a) Agwdmﬁﬂ::mdﬁuhmmmhmﬁsﬁmimuﬂnmhmshmmhvmmMadmsit
used for repayments, have been invested in fixed deposits approved by Director Board.
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(b)(i) Overtime to be paid for an hour is decided by 1/8 of day’s pay and for a day payment is decided by
1/30 of the monthly salary. Holiday allowance related to executives are decided by 1/20 of their
monthly salary.

(ii) Actions is taken to add income currently generated so with the salary and to deduct as Payee Tax.

(lii) A decision has taken to pay an allowance of Rs. 3000/- considering the difficulty of availing
accommodation facilities and foods due to the volatile situation existed in the North East.

Action to be taken in the future to stop this payment by informing the Governing body and to seek
approval of the Ministry of Public Administration in case any additional allowance has to be paid for
essential services.

(c)1) As all accidents effected to vehicles (except No. PD-4600 and cab bearing No.PD-2947) have been
repaired by registered institutes subject to insurance claims, no any loss or damage is caused by such
to the Authority. The loss of Rs. 12,544/- incurred to the Auhority by accidents to vehicles bearing
No.PD-4600 and PD-2927to be dealt as per the F.R. 104 (1) and deciplipary action to be taken in the
future against the persons responsible for this. [ am agreed with matters poi out regarding non
referring damage reports of vehicle accidents to the Auditor General. cers concerned have been
educated to submit those reports to the Audior General in the future,

(ii) I admit of having such instances. The officers related have been educated enabling to levy
discounts for all water charges and Assessments in the future.

(iii) I am agreed with audit observations. The officers concerned have been educated to prepare bank
reconciliation statments without delay.

(iv) Agreed with and officers concerned have been educated to send the signed agreement copies to the
Auditor General in the future.

(v) As iring very old vehicles is not economically viable, direction have been given to auction those
vehicles out.

(vi) Afaed with. This situation has been created by delays in receiving daily running charts and monthly
schedules of the district offices. 05 vehicles out of these vehicles have been attached to the district
offices and other 05 vehicles reserved at the head office and 08 vehicles have been recommented for
disposing. Directions have been given to drivers to maintain running charts and monthly schedules
nrcgiﬁy. Running charts are not maintained for allocated vechcles.

(f) Audit opinion cannot be agreed. Package mobile phone facilities have provided to officers in
capacities of Training Manager, Training officer, District Officer, Apprentice Training Development
Assistant as per the approval of Secretary, Ministry of Youth Affairs and Skills Development (letter
bearing same number 2/1/18/6/17 dated 16.05.2011) and Authority circular No-: (24/1/(D). No other
employee covered by F.R. circular has not provided with phones.

{(g) Charge for not checking fuel consumption of few vehicles is admitted.

(h) Group transport facilities had been provided to two officers bearing post equal to the Deputy Director
level. This situation had been there for a short period due to resigning one officer during this year and
said group transport facilities has been revived now.

(i) Agreed with. The sections related have been educated to get prior approval of the Ministry in case
conducting courses for apprentices below than the minimum.
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() Action would be taken to pay gratuity to all officers who resign from service with entitlement to
grauity within one month. Even such, there were some instances of delay in gratuity payment due to
delays in recovering dues to the Authority by some officers who had resigned without prior notice (not
informing a calendar month in advance), legal issues etc.

3. Financial review
3.1 Financial outcomes

As contingent liabilities for the accountability of the Authority towards cases filed related to Employee
Provident Fund has been declared as accounting policies in 2014 final accounts.

No pay leave for the Director (Training) is depicted in the 2014 final accounts as a revealation regarding
EPF cases.

4

4.1. Performance

(a) Ageed with audit observations. Recruiting apprentices and supervision is mainly handled by
Apprentice inspectors and all apprentices recruited so would not continue their training on practical
Teasons.

The fo]iw'ingfnctors are contributive for leaving apprentices.

= Apprentice recruitment and supervision has been slowed due to resigning service of inspectors
recruited to the institute during this period.

» Tendency of referring to follow NVQ courses apart from NAITA policies over motivating
apprentices to training at various places by current inspectors. Necessary actin has already taken to
correct these deficiencies.

= Suspending allowance of Rs. 1000/- paid to apprentices by the Authority due to delay of government
reimbursement.

= School leavers referred to training after sitting for examinatons turned to higher education by
receiving results.

= Leaving training due to having permanent employments.

= Lack of sufficient interrelationship between apprentice training needs and industries and lack of a
stable policy for its success. Actions needed to rectify those deficiencies have already taken.

(b)
(¢) (i) Though 19,500 apprentices who had completed training had targeted to refer to vocational tests,

* Non appearing for tests though they were referred to appraisal tests.
= Not appearing due to employment opportunities opened for them at the end of apprentice training.
= Non existence of a to ise them even after getting employmnets.
Those instances mnditmfﬁ]edmmmhmm appraisal test due to leaving from
training

(ii) Modules are given only for the institutional mechanic apprentices and nearly 24,000 copies of lessons
were needed to distribute to number of apprentices in training in the year under review. Actions was
taken to revise and to print this series of lessons in colours during the year 2013 and a few number of
old series of lessons did not print until latest version came out of print. Due to that, distribution of
around 2400 series of lessons got late and actions was taken to distribute them at the begimming of the
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year 2014. The printing of lesson series related to all courses to be accomplished before tumn of the
said year

(iii) Duteis entrusted to the Human Resources Development section was interrupted in the year 2013 due
to attaching officers of that section to various sections and institutes. For that reason, training
programmes could not be held.

(iv) Certificates under the National Vocational Qaulification are issued by external persons for number of
persons applied for such. Though 4200 number of certificates had been targeted by the tendency
shown in the last year, only 3003 certificates were used in the year under review as many National
Vocational tests have developed into NVQ tests. Even such, more than 1200 certificates recorded
fallen short here, have been offered to vocations similar to the NVQ - RPL. The Authority has planned
to transform many National Vocational test in to NVQ in the oncoming years and to offer more
benefits to applicants through NVQ certificates.

42 M ¢ deficienci
{n}Wurkml:mgrms

i. The demurrage to the following proportions have been charged for mot accomplishing hostel
construction contracts at National Engineering Technological institute and Apprentice Training

Institute,
National Engineering Technical Institute - Rs. 300,000
Apprentice Training Institute - Rs. 600,000

In addition to the aforesaid sum, a building worth approximately Rs. 2,997,186.05 has been
constructed next to Finance Divsions by the company named “Wemara constructions Pvt. Ltd.”
which undertook construction free of charge.

Total sum charges as demerrage - Rs.  300,000.00

Rs. 600,000.00

Rs, 2.997,186.05

Rs. 3.897.186.05

Accordingly, demarage to be recovered - Rs.4,873,074.00

Rs. 975.887.95

ii. The contract for constructing another floor has been awarded to the institute which erected
Printing unit (in head office) subject to the approval of the Chairman. Action is taken to recover
demerrages related to payments after getting the approval of the Procurement Committee.

iti.  Even thought it had been earlier decided to construct a parapet wall covering even the hostel of the
National Engineering Technical Institute, the decision had to be changed later due to opposition
leveled by the CGR. After that, Chairman had approved to construct it covering office premise
situated by the Air port road. (Demerrage was not charged due to conducting the Commenweath
Head of State summit.

iv.  As this contract is a short term one for renovating office of the Deputy Chairman, agreement is not
made with parties related.

v. Admitted as there were neither having a contract offering letter nor an agreement. Action is taken
not to have recurences of this nature in future.



vi.  Though construction works in lobby had not accomplished as estimated, an amount less than the
estimate for works attended has been paid to the contractor. Money has not paid as not submitting
bills by them for the other works completed.

vii.  Lack of having a contract agreement is accepted. The contractor had accomplished works worth to
the estimates sum of seven hundred thousand rupees. For which payments is already done.

(b) Exhibitions, seminars and propaganda expenditure
(1) No loss has caused as purchases are made at minimum prices.

(ii) Accomodation has been sought for officers who engaed in duties in the “Deyata Kirula” premises.
Rs. 2000/- has been paid to each officer per day and it is a special allowance paid under approval of then
Chairman in place of dependency allowance and overtime duties. Arrangements are made to get approval
of Ministry of Public Administration in case any additional allowance is proposed for essentials of this
nature.

(c) Postal and Communication payments

(i) Monthly official telephone bills have to be settled under monthly communication facility limits
allocated for officers and if any amount is left by such settlement to be used for settling telephone bills
surpassing approved limits in the financial year (P.F.C. No. 03/2014). Accordingly, action was taken to
deduct any excesses found from the annual maximum consolidated expenditure from officers concerned.

(ii) The CDMA telephone had handed over to the store and tax and permanent charges had been paid due
to not educating subject officers. This telephone is already disconnected and handed over to the Sri Lanka
Telecom.

(iii) Mobile phone package connection has not extended to Instructors recruited on contract basis. This line
has been provided to the Management Assistant at the time of serving as a Personal Assistant under
directions of the former Chairman. Telephone is already disconnected as the said officer is resigned from
service.

4.3 Transactions in contravence to aims

Itwasclmrthﬂthisacﬁonhastakmwiﬂlﬂ:eaimufe&ucaﬁngextemalpurﬁﬂsonowﬁmhnﬁty,mﬁng
public relationship and getting wide publicity of services rendered by the institute.

4.4 Staff administration

(a) Staff has been recruited on requirement. Though applications are called by newspaper advertisments,
current vacancies could not be filled due to qualified persons did not agree with the salaries offered.

(b) Approval of Management Services Department has not sought in recruiting to the contract positions.
But, vacancies for approved posts habe been covered by employees employed on contract basis. Later
on those officers had been absorbed into permanent positions on requirement.

(c) Agred with.
It is instructors who recruited for teaching purposes are serving at training centres. They are to be
transferred only to any other such' training centres. As constant transfers of instructors may affect
teaching persuits and service requirements, the transfers had not been effected .

(d) Approval of Ministry and Director Board has been obtained to recruit this officer as a Director by
conducting an interview on 2011.07.18. But he has been recruited as a director in the Deelopment

78




section on secondary basis and salary of him has approved bythe Management services
Departmenet .

5. Accounting and good governance
5.1 Budget controls

Budget is prepared on financial basis and final accounts is prepared on accrued basis.
The fluctuations in the budget has been got approved.

6. Systems and Structure
The matter is noted for paying special attention towards administrative areas referred herein.
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